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Dear Shareholder,

The new government brings with it a strong skill 
development agenda in IT, as is aptly captured in 
the statement above of our Hon’ble Prime 
Minister and will drive growth for our industry. 
The incumbent government has planned a huge 
budget for Vocational training. Our Prime 
Minister has successfully trained a large number 
of students in Gujarat in various vocational 
courses in last 5 years.  We were one of the 
major training partners in this endeavor, training 
over 1600 students with multiple state 
governments and will continue to play a major 
role in the Vocational and Skill development 
domain and contribute towards building a new 
India.

The last fiscal was a tough year for the Indian 
economy in general being an election year, 

witnessing very depressed market conditions. 
While your company survived this phase and 
delivered dividends and improved its market 
value, we used the slowdown to consolidate the 
business, build efficiencies, improve quality of 
education delivery, so as to prepare the 
company for new growth that we envisage 
would come over the next few years. 

During the past year, we churned our affiliate 
channel and closed eight non performing 
centers. Last year, we opened six new Affiliate 
centers in Bilaspur, Karad, Marathali, Asansol, 
Solapur and one International centre at Nepal. 
We also undertook market analysis and have put 
into place a channel growth plan which will see 
30 new centers open up this fiscal in India. 

As part of the consolidation plan, a simplified 
and streamline revenue model for our affiliates 
was introduced in this year to ensure long term 
sustainability of the centers. This has also 
improved efficiencies and better margins from 
operations.
 
Continuing on our chosen growth path of 
tapping new markets in international locations, 
we have successfully launched our new center 
in Nepal at Kathmandu. The center at Vietnam 
was made stronger and brand established with 
over 170 students enrolling for our courses at 
the center located in Ho Chi Min city. Our 
International Business Development team has 
completed the mapping of the potential in 
Ghana, Nigeria and Ivory Coast and potential 
partners have been identified. Your company is 
confident that it will further increase its 
international footprint in this year. 

We expanded our share of the graduate 
vocational study segment with a focus on an 
advanced level course for IT graduates – 
Masters in Network Administration (MNA) – 
which was offered through the key centers 
across India and which performed very well 
with an increase of 39% against last year in 
contribution to sales. The company will 
continue to expand the reach of this course 
across all centers as a part of its growth strategy 
and will address the needs of this new segment.

As part of our strategy to tap new market 
segments, we have now introduced our new 

offering – Retailability. Targeting the fast 
growing organized retail industry, which is 
forecasted to have a requirement of over 17mn 
skilled resources by 2022, this new Course 
Offering in Retail and Sales Training, is being 
offered in association with the Retailers 
Association's Skill Council of India (RASCI). 
Initially being test marketed in Delhi and 
Mumbai, we plan to expand to other key 
markets during the coming year. 

The new web based Learning Management 
System (LMS) branded as ‘Jetking Online School 
of Training (JOST)’ is being beta tested in our 
own centers. It is a world class cloud based LMS. 
This will introduce integrate all our business 
operations into one integrated system and will 
provide a unified Student Life Cycle 
Management system along with an e-Learning 
capability & cloud campus to Jetking. JOST will 
deliver a world class learning experience to 
students as they will be able to access their 
course from anywhere. The parents will be able 
to see the progress of their wards. All the 
Jetking centers will be able to see the 
dashboard of their center 24x7. 

In 2013-14, we also completed the 
implementation of the new brand identity of 
Jetking across all centers and consolidated the 
new persona of the company to all 
stakeholders. This brought in a fresh 
perspective and prepared our strong brand to 
evolve for addressing new growth areas and 
consumers in the future.

As part of our commitment to generating 
employment and maintain our leadership in the 
vocational job oriented training industry, 
Jetking now offers not only a 100% Job 
Guarantee, but a 5 year Placement Promise 
also. We augmented our Placement Division 
and increased reach to new & emerging 
segments of companies. During the year, 
Jetking was recognized by the ‘Limca Book of 
Records’ for ‘Providing the Highest Number of 
Placements in Computer Networking Training 
Domain’.

No business growth is possible without a 
consequent strengthening of the service 
delivery, and we undertook an intensive 
program to improve efficiencies in education 
delivery, quality and customer satisfaction. 

The Quality Audit process was simplified, 
streamlined and a standardized center Quality 
score card was put into place called Titanium 
365. Periodically monitored by a team of 
qualified auditors, introduction of Titanium 
365 is an endeavor to continuously improve the 
quality of offerings to the students through 
excellence in all facets of centre activities.     

Covering critical centre operations and 
Infrastructure parameters, the objective of the 
tool is to measure the centre performance 
through various angles and highlight areas of 
improvement. This proactive and holistic 
approach of keeping the centre at optimum 
level of excellence throughout 365 days of the 
year will ensure customer delight at all Jetking 
centres.  

We have also brought into focus our human 
resources and an exhaustive exercise was 
carried out to assess the competency capability 
of the manpower and train those who needed 
grooming, while adding in those areas where we 
were weak. A new senior management cadre is 
being built with professionals, who will help in 
growing the business forward.

As we move ahead in the New Year, the Jetking 
team would like to thank all our stakeholders, 
employees, vendors, bankers, shareholders, for 
your continued support and encouragement.

Sincerely
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Our Purpose

At Jetking we are inspired by our vision, mission and values. 
They constantly drive us to manage our relationships with 
various stakeholders.

OUR VALUES
Quality, Trust, Self-motivation, Innovation, Hands-on, Learning 
& Teaching, and Equanimity.

OUR VISION
To provide economic independence to 10 million people in 
India and Overseas.

OUR MISSION
To become a world class engine for employment 
generation through an efficient partnership network.
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with an increase of 39% against last year in 
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continue to expand the reach of this course 
across all centers as a part of its growth strategy 
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growing organized retail industry, which is 
forecasted to have a requirement of over 17mn 
skilled resources by 2022, this new Course 
Offering in Retail and Sales Training, is being 
offered in association with the Retailers 
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Initially being test marketed in Delhi and 
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Management system along with an e-Learning 
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MR. NANDU BHARWANI
JOINT MANAGING DIRECTOR

MR. SURESH BHARWANI
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

FROM THE DIRECTOR’S DESK
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students as they will be able to access their 
course from anywhere. The parents will be able 
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“IT + IT = IT ; Indian Talent + Information Technology = India Tomorrow”  
- Narendra Modi
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economy in general being an election year, 

witnessing very depressed market conditions. 
While your company survived this phase and 
delivered dividends and improved its market 
value, we used the slowdown to consolidate the 
business, build efficiencies, improve quality of 
education delivery, so as to prepare the 
company for new growth that we envisage 
would come over the next few years. 

During the past year, we churned our affiliate 
channel and closed eight non performing 
centers. Last year, we opened six new Affiliate 
centers in Bilaspur, Karad, Marathali, Asansol, 
Solapur and one International centre at Nepal. 
We also undertook market analysis and have put 
into place a channel growth plan which will see 
30 new centers open up this fiscal in India. 

As part of the consolidation plan, a simplified 
and streamline revenue model for our affiliates 
was introduced in this year to ensure long term 
sustainability of the centers. This has also 
improved efficiencies and better margins from 
operations.
 
Continuing on our chosen growth path of 
tapping new markets in international locations, 
we have successfully launched our new center 
in Nepal at Kathmandu. The center at Vietnam 
was made stronger and brand established with 
over 170 students enrolling for our courses at 
the center located in Ho Chi Min city. Our 
International Business Development team has 
completed the mapping of the potential in 
Ghana, Nigeria and Ivory Coast and potential 
partners have been identified. Your company is 
confident that it will further increase its 
international footprint in this year. 

We expanded our share of the graduate 
vocational study segment with a focus on an 
advanced level course for IT graduates – 
Masters in Network Administration (MNA) – 
which was offered through the key centers 
across India and which performed very well 
with an increase of 39% against last year in 
contribution to sales. The company will 
continue to expand the reach of this course 
across all centers as a part of its growth strategy 
and will address the needs of this new segment.

As part of our strategy to tap new market 
segments, we have now introduced our new 

offering – Retailability. Targeting the fast 
growing organized retail industry, which is 
forecasted to have a requirement of over 17mn 
skilled resources by 2022, this new Course 
Offering in Retail and Sales Training, is being 
offered in association with the Retailers 
Association's Skill Council of India (RASCI). 
Initially being test marketed in Delhi and 
Mumbai, we plan to expand to other key 
markets during the coming year. 

The new web based Learning Management 
System (LMS) branded as ‘Jetking Online School 
of Training (JOST)’ is being beta tested in our 
own centers. It is a world class cloud based LMS. 
This will introduce integrate all our business 
operations into one integrated system and will 
provide a unified Student Life Cycle 
Management system along with an e-Learning 
capability & cloud campus to Jetking. JOST will 
deliver a world class learning experience to 
students as they will be able to access their 
course from anywhere. The parents will be able 
to see the progress of their wards. All the 
Jetking centers will be able to see the 
dashboard of their center 24x7. 

In 2013-14, we also completed the 
implementation of the new brand identity of 
Jetking across all centers and consolidated the 
new persona of the company to all 
stakeholders. This brought in a fresh 
perspective and prepared our strong brand to 
evolve for addressing new growth areas and 
consumers in the future.

As part of our commitment to generating 
employment and maintain our leadership in the 
vocational job oriented training industry, 
Jetking now offers not only a 100% Job 
Guarantee, but a 5 year Placement Promise 
also. We augmented our Placement Division 
and increased reach to new & emerging 
segments of companies. During the year, 
Jetking was recognized by the ‘Limca Book of 
Records’ for ‘Providing the Highest Number of 
Placements in Computer Networking Training 
Domain’.

No business growth is possible without a 
consequent strengthening of the service 
delivery, and we undertook an intensive 
program to improve efficiencies in education 
delivery, quality and customer satisfaction. 

The Quality Audit process was simplified, 
streamlined and a standardized center Quality 
score card was put into place called Titanium 
365. Periodically monitored by a team of 
qualified auditors, introduction of Titanium 
365 is an endeavor to continuously improve the 
quality of offerings to the students through 
excellence in all facets of centre activities.     

Covering critical centre operations and 
Infrastructure parameters, the objective of the 
tool is to measure the centre performance 
through various angles and highlight areas of 
improvement. This proactive and holistic 
approach of keeping the centre at optimum 
level of excellence throughout 365 days of the 
year will ensure customer delight at all Jetking 
centres.  

We have also brought into focus our human 
resources and an exhaustive exercise was 
carried out to assess the competency capability 
of the manpower and train those who needed 
grooming, while adding in those areas where we 
were weak. A new senior management cadre is 
being built with professionals, who will help in 
growing the business forward.

As we move ahead in the New Year, the Jetking 
team would like to thank all our stakeholders, 
employees, vendors, bankers, shareholders, for 
your continued support and encouragement.

Sincerely
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Dear Shareholder,

The new government brings with it a strong skill 
development agenda in IT, as is aptly captured in 
the statement above of our Hon’ble Prime 
Minister and will drive growth for our industry. 
The incumbent government has planned a huge 
budget for Vocational training. Our Prime 
Minister has successfully trained a large number 
of students in Gujarat in various vocational 
courses in last 5 years.  We were one of the 
major training partners in this endeavor, training 
over 1600 students with multiple state 
governments and will continue to play a major 
role in the Vocational and Skill development 
domain and contribute towards building a new 
India.

The last fiscal was a tough year for the Indian 
economy in general being an election year, 

witnessing very depressed market conditions. 
While your company survived this phase and 
delivered dividends and improved its market 
value, we used the slowdown to consolidate the 
business, build efficiencies, improve quality of 
education delivery, so as to prepare the 
company for new growth that we envisage 
would come over the next few years. 

During the past year, we churned our affiliate 
channel and closed eight non performing 
centers. Last year, we opened six new Affiliate 
centers in Bilaspur, Karad, Marathali, Asansol, 
Solapur and one International centre at Nepal. 
We also undertook market analysis and have put 
into place a channel growth plan which will see 
30 new centers open up this fiscal in India. 

As part of the consolidation plan, a simplified 
and streamline revenue model for our affiliates 
was introduced in this year to ensure long term 
sustainability of the centers. This has also 
improved efficiencies and better margins from 
operations.
 
Continuing on our chosen growth path of 
tapping new markets in international locations, 
we have successfully launched our new center 
in Nepal at Kathmandu. The center at Vietnam 
was made stronger and brand established with 
over 170 students enrolling for our courses at 
the center located in Ho Chi Min city. Our 
International Business Development team has 
completed the mapping of the potential in 
Ghana, Nigeria and Ivory Coast and potential 
partners have been identified. Your company is 
confident that it will further increase its 
international footprint in this year. 

We expanded our share of the graduate 
vocational study segment with a focus on an 
advanced level course for IT graduates – 
Masters in Network Administration (MNA) – 
which was offered through the key centers 
across India and which performed very well 
with an increase of 39% against last year in 
contribution to sales. The company will 
continue to expand the reach of this course 
across all centers as a part of its growth strategy 
and will address the needs of this new segment.

As part of our strategy to tap new market 
segments, we have now introduced our new 

offering – Retailability. Targeting the fast 
growing organized retail industry, which is 
forecasted to have a requirement of over 17mn 
skilled resources by 2022, this new Course 
Offering in Retail and Sales Training, is being 
offered in association with the Retailers 
Association's Skill Council of India (RASCI). 
Initially being test marketed in Delhi and 
Mumbai, we plan to expand to other key 
markets during the coming year. 

The new web based Learning Management 
System (LMS) branded as ‘Jetking Online School 
of Training (JOST)’ is being beta tested in our 
own centers. It is a world class cloud based LMS. 
This will introduce integrate all our business 
operations into one integrated system and will 
provide a unified Student Life Cycle 
Management system along with an e-Learning 
capability & cloud campus to Jetking. JOST will 
deliver a world class learning experience to 
students as they will be able to access their 
course from anywhere. The parents will be able 
to see the progress of their wards. All the 
Jetking centers will be able to see the 
dashboard of their center 24x7. 

In 2013-14, we also completed the 
implementation of the new brand identity of 
Jetking across all centers and consolidated the 
new persona of the company to all 
stakeholders. This brought in a fresh 
perspective and prepared our strong brand to 
evolve for addressing new growth areas and 
consumers in the future.

As part of our commitment to generating 
employment and maintain our leadership in the 
vocational job oriented training industry, 
Jetking now offers not only a 100% Job 
Guarantee, but a 5 year Placement Promise 
also. We augmented our Placement Division 
and increased reach to new & emerging 
segments of companies. During the year, 
Jetking was recognized by the ‘Limca Book of 
Records’ for ‘Providing the Highest Number of 
Placements in Computer Networking Training 
Domain’.

No business growth is possible without a 
consequent strengthening of the service 
delivery, and we undertook an intensive 
program to improve efficiencies in education 
delivery, quality and customer satisfaction. 

The Quality Audit process was simplified, 
streamlined and a standardized center Quality 
score card was put into place called Titanium 
365. Periodically monitored by a team of 
qualified auditors, introduction of Titanium 
365 is an endeavor to continuously improve the 
quality of offerings to the students through 
excellence in all facets of centre activities.     

Covering critical centre operations and 
Infrastructure parameters, the objective of the 
tool is to measure the centre performance 
through various angles and highlight areas of 
improvement. This proactive and holistic 
approach of keeping the centre at optimum 
level of excellence throughout 365 days of the 
year will ensure customer delight at all Jetking 
centres.  

We have also brought into focus our human 
resources and an exhaustive exercise was 
carried out to assess the competency capability 
of the manpower and train those who needed 
grooming, while adding in those areas where we 
were weak. A new senior management cadre is 
being built with professionals, who will help in 
growing the business forward.

As we move ahead in the New Year, the Jetking 
team would like to thank all our stakeholders, 
employees, vendors, bankers, shareholders, for 
your continued support and encouragement.

Sincerely
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Start up 
We help you identify the best 
location, and aid you in the 
design and construction of your 
centre. We also help to recruit 
the right team members and 
train them for peak 
performance.

Advertising & Marketing
With the launch of your centre 
our support system helps you to 
spread strong awareness in your 
locality through Advertising & 
Local Marketing, PR and Online 
Marketing that will help you 
continuously, to grow your 
business. 

100 % Hassle Free Operations
Our support mechanism and 
online systems ensure A-Z of 
centre management, so you are 
updated with what is happening 
and what needs your attention.

Manpower Support
You never have to worry about 
anyone leaving. Because they 
don’t. Our regular training 
programs keep everyone
engaged and constantly 
motivated to learn and grow 
more… Everyday.
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Franchise First : “Our award winning franchise support system 
 that ensures your success when you partner  with Jetking” 

P a r t n e r  :

Franchise by invitation only.                                                                                                      www.jetking.com

“As a young entrepreneur,
  honestly, I was both 
  excited and anxious. 
  But Jetking’s support 
  gave me the confidence
  and made me who I am 
  today.”
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Dear Shareholder,

The new government brings with it a strong skill 
development agenda in IT, as is aptly captured in 
the statement above of our Hon’ble Prime 
Minister and will drive growth for our industry. 
The incumbent government has planned a huge 
budget for Vocational training. Our Prime 
Minister has successfully trained a large number 
of students in Gujarat in various vocational 
courses in last 5 years.  We were one of the 
major training partners in this endeavor, training 
over 1600 students with multiple state 
governments and will continue to play a major 
role in the Vocational and Skill development 
domain and contribute towards building a new 
India.

The last fiscal was a tough year for the Indian 
economy in general being an election year, 

witnessing very depressed market conditions. 
While your company survived this phase and 
delivered dividends and improved its market 
value, we used the slowdown to consolidate the 
business, build efficiencies, improve quality of 
education delivery, so as to prepare the 
company for new growth that we envisage 
would come over the next few years. 

During the past year, we churned our affiliate 
channel and closed eight non performing 
centers. Last year, we opened six new Affiliate 
centers in Bilaspur, Karad, Marathali, Asansol, 
Solapur and one International centre at Nepal. 
We also undertook market analysis and have put 
into place a channel growth plan which will see 
30 new centers open up this fiscal in India. 

As part of the consolidation plan, a simplified 
and streamline revenue model for our affiliates 
was introduced in this year to ensure long term 
sustainability of the centers. This has also 
improved efficiencies and better margins from 
operations.
 
Continuing on our chosen growth path of 
tapping new markets in international locations, 
we have successfully launched our new center 
in Nepal at Kathmandu. The center at Vietnam 
was made stronger and brand established with 
over 170 students enrolling for our courses at 
the center located in Ho Chi Min city. Our 
International Business Development team has 
completed the mapping of the potential in 
Ghana, Nigeria and Ivory Coast and potential 
partners have been identified. Your company is 
confident that it will further increase its 
international footprint in this year. 

We expanded our share of the graduate 
vocational study segment with a focus on an 
advanced level course for IT graduates – 
Masters in Network Administration (MNA) – 
which was offered through the key centers 
across India and which performed very well 
with an increase of 39% against last year in 
contribution to sales. The company will 
continue to expand the reach of this course 
across all centers as a part of its growth strategy 
and will address the needs of this new segment.

As part of our strategy to tap new market 
segments, we have now introduced our new 

offering – Retailability. Targeting the fast 
growing organized retail industry, which is 
forecasted to have a requirement of over 17mn 
skilled resources by 2022, this new Course 
Offering in Retail and Sales Training, is being 
offered in association with the Retailers 
Association's Skill Council of India (RASCI). 
Initially being test marketed in Delhi and 
Mumbai, we plan to expand to other key 
markets during the coming year. 

The new web based Learning Management 
System (LMS) branded as ‘Jetking Online School 
of Training (JOST)’ is being beta tested in our 
own centers. It is a world class cloud based LMS. 
This will introduce integrate all our business 
operations into one integrated system and will 
provide a unified Student Life Cycle 
Management system along with an e-Learning 
capability & cloud campus to Jetking. JOST will 
deliver a world class learning experience to 
students as they will be able to access their 
course from anywhere. The parents will be able 
to see the progress of their wards. All the 
Jetking centers will be able to see the 
dashboard of their center 24x7. 

In 2013-14, we also completed the 
implementation of the new brand identity of 
Jetking across all centers and consolidated the 
new persona of the company to all 
stakeholders. This brought in a fresh 
perspective and prepared our strong brand to 
evolve for addressing new growth areas and 
consumers in the future.

As part of our commitment to generating 
employment and maintain our leadership in the 
vocational job oriented training industry, 
Jetking now offers not only a 100% Job 
Guarantee, but a 5 year Placement Promise 
also. We augmented our Placement Division 
and increased reach to new & emerging 
segments of companies. During the year, 
Jetking was recognized by the ‘Limca Book of 
Records’ for ‘Providing the Highest Number of 
Placements in Computer Networking Training 
Domain’.

No business growth is possible without a 
consequent strengthening of the service 
delivery, and we undertook an intensive 
program to improve efficiencies in education 
delivery, quality and customer satisfaction. 

The Quality Audit process was simplified, 
streamlined and a standardized center Quality 
score card was put into place called Titanium 
365. Periodically monitored by a team of 
qualified auditors, introduction of Titanium 
365 is an endeavor to continuously improve the 
quality of offerings to the students through 
excellence in all facets of centre activities.     

Covering critical centre operations and 
Infrastructure parameters, the objective of the 
tool is to measure the centre performance 
through various angles and highlight areas of 
improvement. This proactive and holistic 
approach of keeping the centre at optimum 
level of excellence throughout 365 days of the 
year will ensure customer delight at all Jetking 
centres.  

We have also brought into focus our human 
resources and an exhaustive exercise was 
carried out to assess the competency capability 
of the manpower and train those who needed 
grooming, while adding in those areas where we 
were weak. A new senior management cadre is 
being built with professionals, who will help in 
growing the business forward.

As we move ahead in the New Year, the Jetking 
team would like to thank all our stakeholders, 
employees, vendors, bankers, shareholders, for 
your continued support and encouragement.

Sincerely
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NOTICE

NOTICE	is	hereby	given	that	Thirtieth	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Members	of	JETKING	INFOTRAIN	LIMITED	
will	be	held	at	Executive	Enclave,	331,	Dr.	Ambedkar	Road,	Pali	Hill,	Bandra	(W),	Mumbai	–	400	050,	on	Monday,	 
July	14,	2014	at	11.30	a.m.	to	transact	the	following	businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1.	 To	receive,	consider	and	adopt	the	Audited	Balance	Sheet	of	the	Company	as	at	March	31,	2014	and	the	

Statement	 of	Profit	&	Loss	 for	 the	 financial	 year	 ended	on	 that	 date,	 together	with	 the	Reports	 of	 the	
Auditors	and	Directors	thereon.

2.	 To	declare	the	Final	Dividend	on	Equity	Shares.
3.	 To	 appoint	 a	Director	 in	 place	 of	Mr.	 Jitu	Bharwani,	who	 retires	 by	 rotation	 and,	 being	 eligible,	 offers	

himself	for	re-appointment.
4.	 To	re-appoint	M/s.	Suresh	Surana	&	Associates	LLP,	Chartered	Accountants,	Mumbai,	as	the	Auditors	of	

the	Company	to	hold	office	from	the	conclusion	of	this	Annual	General	Meeting	till	the	conclusion	of	the	
third	consecutive	Annual	General	Meeting	and	to	authorize	the	Board	of	Directors	to	fix	their	remuneration	
and	to	pass	the	following	resolution	thereof.

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Section	139	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	the	Rules	
made	thereunder,	and	pursuant	to	the	recommendations	of	the	Audit	Committee	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	
M/S	Suresh	Surana	&	Associates	LLP,	Chartered	Accountants	(registration	number	121750W/W-100010)	
be	and	are	hereby	re-appointed	as	the	Statutory	Auditors	of	the	Company,	to	hold	office	from	conclusion	of	
this	Annual	General	Meeting	to	the	conclusion	of	the	third	consecutive	Annual	General	Meeting	(subject	to	
ratification	of	the	appointment	by	the	Shareholders	at	every	Annual	General	Meeting	held	after	this	Annual	
General	Meeting)	and	that	the	Board	of	Directors	be	and	are	hereby	authorised	to	fix	such	remuneration	as	
may	be	determined	by	the	Audit	Committee	in	consultation	with	the	Auditors,	and	that	such	remuneration	
may	be	paid	on	a	progressive	billing	to	be	agreed	upon	between	the	Auditors	and	the	Board	of	Directors.”

SPECIAL BUSINESS:
5.	 To	 consider	 and	 if	 thought	 fit,	 to	 pass	with	 or	without	modification(s),	 the	 following	 resolution	 as	 an	

Ordinary	Resolution:
 “RESOLVED THAT	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Sections	149,	150,	152	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	

of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	the	rules	made	thereunder	(including	any	statutory	modification(s)	or	re-
enactment	thereof	for	the	time	being	in	force)	read	with	Schedule	IV	to	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	Mr.	Mehul	
K.	Kuwadia	(holding	DIN	00618678),	Director	of	the	Company	who	retires	by	rotation	at	the	Annual	General	
Meeting	and	in	respect	of	whom	the	Company	has	received	a	notice	in	writing	proposing	his	candidature	
for	the	office	of	Director,	be	and	is	hereby	appointed	as	an	Independent	Director	of	the	Company	to	hold	
office	for	five	consecutive	years	for	a	term	up	to	31st	March,	2019”.

6.	 To	 consider	 and	 if	 thought	 fit,	 to	 pass	with	 or	without	modification(s),	 the	 following	 resolution	 as	 an	
Ordinary	Resolution:

 “RESOLVED THAT	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Sections	149,	150,	152	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	
of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	the	rules	made	thereunder	(including	any	statutory	modification(s)	or	re-
enactment	thereof	for	the	time	being	in	force)	read	with	Schedule	IV	to	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	Mr.	Surjit	
Banga	(holding	DIN	00001637),	Director	of	 the	Company	who	retires	by	rotation	at	 the	Annual	General	
Meeting	and	in	respect	of	whom	the	Company	has	received	a	notice	in	writing	proposing	his	candidature	
for	the	office	of	Director,	be	and	is	hereby	appointed	as	an	Independent	Director	of	the	Company	to	hold	
office	for	five	consecutive	years	for	a	term	up	to	31st	March,	2019”.

7.	 To	 consider	 and	 if	 thought	 fit,	 to	 pass	with	 or	without	modification(s),	 the	 following	 resolution	 as	 an	
Ordinary	Resolution:
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 “RESOLVED THAT	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Sections	149,	150,	152	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	
of	 the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	 the	 rules	made	 thereunder	 (including	any	statutory	modification(s)	or	
re-enactment	 thereof	 for	 the	 time	 being	 in	 force)	 read	with	 Schedule	 IV	 to	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013,	
Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	(holding	DIN	02292712),	Director	of	the	Company	who	retires	by	rotation	at	the	
Annual	General	Meeting	and	in	respect	of	whom	the	Company	has	received	a	notice	in	writing	proposing	
his	candidature	for	the	office	of	Director,	be	and	is	hereby	appointed	as	an	Independent	Director	of	the	
Company	to	hold	office	for	five	consecutive	years	for	a	term	up	to	31st	March,	2019”.

By	Order	of	the	Board

Deepali Koneri
Company Secretary

Place:	Mumbai
Date:	May	26,	2014

Registered Office:
Jetking	Infotrain	Limited
401,	Bussa	Udyog	Bhavan,
Tokersi	Jivraj	Road,	Sewri	(W),
Mumbai – 400 015
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Notes:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE 

PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.

2. PROXIES IN ORDER TO BE EFFECTIVE MUST BE RECEIVED BY THE COMPANY NOT LESS THAN 48 
HOURS BEFORE THE MEETING.

3.	 Corporate	members	are	requested	to	send	to	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	a	duly	certified	copy	of	
the	Board	Resolution,	pursuant	to	Section	187	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956,	authorizing	their	representative	
to	attend	and	vote	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting.

4.	 Members	/	proxies	are	requested	to	bring	their	duly	signed	attendance	slip	to	attend	the	Meeting.
5.	 Members	 desiring	 any	 information	 on	 the	 Accounts	 and	 Operations	 of	 the	 Company	 are	 requested	 to	

address	their	queries	to	the	Manager	Accounts	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	at	least	10	days	in	
advance	so	as	to	enable	the	Company	to	keep	the	information	readily	available	at	the	Meeting.

6.	 Members	holding	shares	in	the	physical	form	are	requested	to	advice	any	change	in	their	address	to	the	
Company’s	Registrar	and	Share	Transfer	Agent	(R&T	Agent):	Sharex Dynamic (India) Pvt. Ltd., Address: 
Unit – 1, Luthra Ind. Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri – Kurla Road, Andheri (East) Mumbai – 400 072, 
quoting	their	 folio	number.	Members	holding	shares	 in	the	electronic	form	must	send	the	advice	about	
change	in	their	registered	address	or	bank	particulars	to	their	respective	Depository	Participant.

7.	 In	all	the	correspondence	with	the	Company	or	with	the	Share	Transfer	Agent,	members	are	requested	to	
quote	their	folio	number	and,	in	case	the	shares	are	held	in	the	dematerialized	form,	they	must	quote	their	
Client	ID	Number	and	their	DPID	Number.

8.	 The	Register	of	Members	and	Share	Transfer	Books	of	 the	Company	shall	remain	closed	from	July	11,	
2014	to	July	14,	2014	(both	days	inclusive)	for	determining	the	names	of	the	members	eligible	for	dividend	
on	equity	shares	in	the	Company,	if	declared	at	the	Annual	General	Meeting.

9.	 Pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Section	205A(5)	and	205C	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956,	the	Company	has	
transferred	Rs.	8,21,194/-	 (Rupees	Eight	Lakhs	Twenty	One	Thousand	One	Hundred	Ninety	Four	Only)	
being	dividend	for	the	financial	year	2006-07,	which	remain	unpaid	/	unclaimed	for	a	period	of	7	years,	to	
Investor	Education	and	Protection	Fund	(IEPF).	Members,	who	have	not	so	far	encashed	dividend	warrants	
for	 the	 Financial	 Year	 ending	 March	 31,	 2008	 or	 thereafter,	 are	 requested	 to	 seek	 issue	 of	 duplicate	
warrant(s)	 by	 writing	 to	 the	 Company’s	 Registrars	 and	 Transfer	 Agents,	 Sharex	 Dynamic	 (India)	 Pvt.	
Ltd,	 immediately.	The	folio-wise	details	of	unpaid	dividend	for	the	financial	year	ended	March	31,	2007	
onwards	are	available	on	the	Company’s	website	www.jetking.com	as	well	as	on	the	website	of	Ministry	
of	Corporate	Affairs	www.iepf.gov.in.	Members	are	requested	to	note	that	no	claims	shall	lie	against	the	
Company	or	IEPF	in	respect	of	any	amounts	which	were	unclaimed	and	unpaid	for	a	period	of	seven	years	
from	the	dates	that	they	first	became	due	for	payment	and	no	payment	shall	be	made	in	respect	of	any	such	
claims.

10.	 Investors/Shareholders	are	requested	to	kindly	note	that	if	physical	documents	viz.,	Demat	Request	Forms	
(DRF)	and	Share	Certificates	etc.	are	not	received	from	their	Depository	Participant(s)	by	the	RTA	within	
a	period	of	15	days	from	the	date	of	generation	of	the	DRN	for	dematerialization,	the	DRN	will	be	treated	
as	 rejected	 /	 cancelled.	 This	 step	 is	 being	 taken	on	 the	 advice	 of	Depositories,	 viz.	National	Securities	
Depository	 Limited	 (NSDL)	 and	 Central	 Depository	 Services	 (India)	 Limited	 (CDSL)	 so	 that	 no	 demat	
request	remains	pending	beyond	a	period	of	21	days.	Upon	rejection/cancellation	of	the	DRN,	a	fresh	DRF	
with	new	DRN	has	to	be	forwarded	along	with	the	Share	Certificates	by	the	Depository	Participant(s)	to	
the	RTA.	This	note	is	only	to	caution	investors	/	shareholders	that	they	should	ensure	that	their	Depository	
Participant(s)	 do	 not	 delay	 in	 sending	 the	 DRF	 and	 share	 certificates	 to	 the	 RTA	 after	 generating	 the	
DRN.
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11.	 The	Securities	and	Exchange	Board	of	India	(SEBI)	vide	its	circular	no.	CIR/MRD/DP/10/2013	dated	March	
21st,	 2013	 has	made	 it	 mandatory	 for	 all	 the	 listed	 companies	 to	 use,	 either	 directly	 or	 through	 their	
RTA,	any	RBI	approved	electronic	mode	of	payment	such	as	Electronic	Clearing	Services	(ECS),	National	
Electronic	Funds	Transfer	(NEFT),	Real	Time	Gross	Settlement	(RTGS),	etc.	for	distribution	of	dividends	or	
other	cash	benefits	to	the	investors,	wherever	relevant	bank	details	are	available.

	 In	cases	where	either	 the	bank	details	such	as	MICR,	IFSC,	etc.	 that	are	required	for	making	electronic	
payment	are	not	available	or	the	electronic	payment	instructions	have	failed	or	have	been	rejected	by	the	
bank,	companies	or	their	RTA	may	use	physical	payment	instruments	for	making	cash	payments	to	the	
investors.	Companies	are	mandatorily	required	to	print	the	bank	account	details	of	the	investors	on	such	
payment	instruments.

	 All	Members	who	are	holding	shares	 in	Dematerialized	 form	are	 requested	 to	advise	change,	 if	 any,	 in	
details	 of	 their	 bank	 account/ECS	mandates	 to	 their	 respective	 Depository	 Participants	 immediately	 to	
enable	the	Company	to	pay	the	dividend	accordingly.

12.	 In	 terms	of	circular	no.	MRD/DoP/Cir-05/2009	dated	May	20,	2009	 issued	by	Securities	and	Exchange	
Board	of	India	(SEBI),	it	is	now	mandatory	for	the	transferee	of	the	physical	shares	to	furnish	copy	of	PAN	
card	to	R&T	Agents	for	registration	of	transfer	of	shares.

	 SEBI	has	further	clarified	vide	Circular	no.	SEBI/MRD/DoP/SE/RTA/Cir-03/2010	dated	January	07,	2010	
that	it	shall	be	mandatory	to	furnish	a	copy	of	PAN	in	the	following	cases:
a)	 Deletion	of	name	of	the	deceased	shareholder(s),	where	the	shares	are	held	in	the	name	of	two	or	

more shareholder(s).
b)	 Transmission	 of	 shares	 to	 the	 legal	 heir(s),	where	 deceased	 shareholder	was	 the	 sole	 holder	 of	

shares.
c)	 Transposition	of	shares	when	there	is	a	change	in	the	order	of	names	in	which	physical	shares	are	

held	jointly	in	the	names	of	two	or	more	shareholders.
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I. EXPLANATORY STATEMENT IN RESPECT OF THE SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

Item No. 5
Mr.	Mehul	K.	Kuwadia	is	a	Non-Executive	Independent	Director	of	the	Company.	He	joined	the	Board	of	Directors	of	
the	Company	in	June,	2000.	Mr.	Kuwadia	is	Chairman	of	the	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee,	Stakeholder’s	
Grievance	Committee	and	Audit	Committee	of	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company.
Mr.	Kuwadia	has	rich	experience	of	28	years	in	the	field	of	Human	Resources.	He	has	worked	at	General	Management	
levels	 for	 Interlink,	QSS-Lazor,	Lupin,	 Ion	Exchange	and	 for	 Jetking.	Mr.	Kuwadia	has	been	actively	 associated	
with	Bombay	Management	Association,	Ahmedabad	Management	Association	and	Indian	Society	 for	Training	&	
Development.	He	has	also	been	a	visiting	faculty	at	many	of	the	Premium	Management	Institutes	in	Mumbai	and	
has	personally	interacted	with	internationally	well-known	trainers.
Mr.	Mehul	K.	Kuwadia	is	not	a	Director	in	any	other	Company	in	India.	He	is	holding	by	himself	1050	equity	shares	
in	the	Company.
In	terms	of	Section	149	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	Mr.	Kuwadia	being	eligible	
and	offering	himself	for	appointment,	is	proposed	to	be	appointed	as	an	Independent	Director	for	five	consecutive	
years	for	a	term	upto	March	31,	2019.	A	notice	has	been	received	from	a	member	proposing	Mr.	Kuwadia	as	a	
candidate	for	the	office	of	Director	of	the	Company.
In	the	opinion	of	the	Board,	Mr.	Kuwadia	fulfils	the	conditions	specified	in	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	rules	made	
thereunder	for	his	appointment	as	an	Independent	Director	of	the	Company	and	is	independent	of	the	management.	
Copy	 of	 the	 draft	 letter	 for	 appointment	 of	Mr.	 Kuwadia	 as	 an	 Independent	Director	 setting	 out	 the	 terms	 and	
conditions	would	be	available	for	inspection	without	any	fee	by	the	members	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	
during	normal	business	hours	on	any	working	day.
The	Board	considers	that	his	continued	association	would	be	of	immense	benefit	to	the	Company	and	it	is	desirable	
to	continue	to	avail	services	of	Mr.	Kuwadia	as	an	Independent	Director.	Accordingly,	the	Board	recommends	the	
resolution	in	relation	to	appointment	of	Mr.	Kuwadia	as	an	Independent	Director,	for	the	approval	by	the	shareholders	
of	the	Company.
Except	Mr.	Kuwadia,	being	an	appointee,	none	of	 the	Directors	and	Key	Managerial	Personnel	of	 the	Company	
and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	the	resolution	set	out	at	Item	No.	5.	This	
Explanatory	Statement	may	also	be	regarded	as	a	disclosure	under	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	agreement	with	the	
Stock	Exchange.

Item No. 6
Mr.	Surjit	Banga	is	a	Non-Executive	Independent	Director	of	the	Company.	He	joined	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	
Company	in	December,	2012.	Mr.	Banga	is	Member	of	the	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee,	Stakeholder’s	
Grievance	Committee	and	Audit	Committee	of	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company.
Mr.	Surjit	Banga	has	had	an	illustrious	career	with	the	State	Bank	of	India	(SBI)	lasting	over	a	period	of	38	years	
and	retired	in	2001.	During	his	stint	with	SBI,	he	handled	key	assignments	as	Chief	Regional	Manager,	Jabalpur	
(M.P.)	and	Jaipur	(Rajasthan).	He	was	the	Chief	Executive	Officer	of	the	Banks’	Paris	(France)	operations	and	in	that	
capacity	also	acted	as	representative	for	Portugal,	Spain,	West	and	North	Africa.	He	was	also	elected	to	represent	
South	Asia	Pacific	Banks	on	the	Group	of	Foreign	Banks	advising	the	French	Banking	Association.
Mr.	Banga	 is	 an	 alumni	of	 the	Rajasthan	University	 from	where	he	 completed	his	graduation.	He	 is	 a	Certified	
Associate	of	Indian	Institute	of	Bankers	and	Fellow	of	All	India	Management	Association.
Mr.	Banga	 is	Director	 in	 three	Listed	Company	and	one	Private	Limited	Company	 in	India.	He	does	not	hold	by	
himself	or	for	any	other	person	on	a	beneficial	basis,	any	shares	in	the	Company.
Mr.	Banga	retires	by	rotation	at	the	ensuing	Annual	General	Meeting	under	the	erstwhile	applicable	provisions	of	
Companies	Act,	1956.	In	terms	of	Section	149	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	it	
is	proposed	that	Mr.	Surjit	Banga	to	be	appointed	as	an	Independent	Director	for	five	consecutive	years	for	a	term	
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upto	31st	March,	2019.	A	notice	has	been	received	from	a	member	proposing	Mr.	Banga	as	a	candidate	for	the	office	
of	Director	of	the	Company.
In	the	opinion	of	the	Board,	Mr.	Banga	fulfils	the	conditions	specified	in	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	rules	made	
thereunder	for	his	appointment	as	an	Independent	Director	of	the	Company	and	is	independent	of	the	management.	
Copy	of	the	draft	letter	for	appointment	of	Mr.	Banga	as	an	Independent	Director	setting	out	the	terms	and	conditions	
would	be	available	for	inspection	without	any	fee	by	the	members	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	during	
normal	business	hours	on	any	working	day.
The	Board	considers	that	his	continued	association	would	be	of	immense	benefit	to	the	Company	and	it	is	desirable	
to	continue	to	avail	services	of	Mr.	Banga	as	an	Independent	Director.	Accordingly,	 the	Board	recommends	the	
resolution	in	relation	to	appointment	of	Mr.	Banga	as	an	Independent	Director,	for	the	approval	by	the	shareholders	
of	the	Company.
Except	 Mr.	 Banga,	 being	 an	 appointee,	 none	 of	 the	 Directors	 and	 Key	Managerial	 Personnel	 of	 the	 Company	
and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	the	resolution	set	out	at	Item	No.	6.	This	
Explanatory	Statement	may	also	be	regarded	as	a	disclosure	under	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	agreement	with	the	
Stock	Exchange.

Item No. 7
Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	is	a	Non-Executive	Independent	Director	of	the	Company.	He	joined	the	Board	of	Directors	
of	 the	Company	 in	March	2013.	Mr.	Mandavgane	 is	Member	of	 the	Nomination	and	Remuneration	Committee,	
Stakeholder’s	Grievance	Committee	and	Audit	Committee	of	the	Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company.
He	is	the	Managing	Director	&	CEO	of	Bloom	Systems	a	HR	Outsourcing	and	Consulting	Company	since	2010.	In	
his	previous	role,	he	was	the	MD	&	CEO	of	3i	Infotech	Consultancy	Services	Ltd.	with	an	employee	count	of	over	
7000	employees,	wherein	he	started	as	Head	HR.
Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	is	a	Post	Graduate	in	Human	Resources	from	Mumbai	University	and	an	Alumni	of	Kellogg	
School	of	Management,	Chicago.
He	 has	 worked	 in	 Companies	 like	 Foseco,	 Tata’s,	 S	 M	 Dyechem,	 and	 Matrix	 Telecommunications	 &	 ICICI.	 A	
professional	career	spanning	over	28	Years,	he	has	been	a	part	of	core	merger	&	acquisition	teams	which	acquired	
more	than	10	IT	and	consulting	companies	in	India,	US,	Western	Europe,	Middle	East	and	China.	His	current	company	
Bloom	Systems	is	a	full	service	HR	Outsourcing	and	consulting	organisation	which	has	over	1200	employees	with	
specialization	 in	Staffing,	Recruitment,	Training,	HR	Outsourcing	&	Fresher’s	paid	 training	and	placements	with	
Large	Indian	and	MNC’s.
Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	is	a	Director	in	one	Private	Limited	Company	in	India.	He	does	not	hold	by	himself	or	for	
any	other	person	on	a	beneficial	basis,	any	shares	in	the	Company.
Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	retires	by	rotation	at	the	ensuing	Annual	General	Meeting	under	the	erstwhile	applicable	
provisions	of	Companies	Act,	1956.	In	terms	of	Section	149	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	of	the	Companies	
Act,	2013,	it	is	proposed	that	Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	to	be	appointed	as	an	Independent	Director	for	five	consecutive	
years	for	a	term	upto	31st	March,	2019.	A	notice	has	been	received	from	a	member	proposing	Mr.	Mandavgane	as	
a	candidate	for	the	office	of	Director	of	the	Company.
In	 the	 opinion	 of	 the	 Board,	Mr.	Mandavgane	 fulfils	 the	 conditions	 specified	 in	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 2013	 and	
rules	made	thereunder	for	his	appointment	as	an	Independent	Director	of	the	Company	and	is	independent	of	the	
management.	Copy	of	the	draft	letter	for	appointment	of	Mr.	Mandavgane	as	an	Independent	Director	setting	out	
the	terms	and	conditions	would	be	available	for	inspection	without	any	fee	by	the	members	at	the	Registered	Office	
of	the	Company	during	normal	business	hours	on	any	working	day.
The	Board	considers	that	his	continued	association	would	be	of	immense	benefit	to	the	Company	and	it	is	desirable	
to	continue	to	avail	services	of	Mr.	Mandavgane	as	an	Independent	Director.	Accordingly,	the	Board	recommends	
the	resolution	in	relation	to	appointment	of	Mr.	Mandavgane	as	an	Independent	Director,	for	the	approval	by	the	
shareholders	of	the	Company.
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Except	Mr.	Mandavgane,	being	an	appointee,	none	of	the	Directors	and	Key	Managerial	Personnel	of	the	Company	
and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	otherwise,	in	the	resolution	set	out	at	Item	No.	5.	This	
Explanatory	Statement	may	also	be	regarded	as	a	disclosure	under	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	agreement	with	the	
Stock	Exchange.

II. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/ RE-APPOINTMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER CLAUSE 49 
OF THE LISTING AGREEMENT WITH THE STOCK EXCHANGE:

Re-appointment of Mr. Jitu Bharwani (Item No. 3)
In	terms	of	Section	149,	152	and	any	other	applicable	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	effective	from	1st 
April,	2014,	for	the	purpose	of	determining	the	directors	liable	to	retire	by	rotation,	the	Independent	Directors	shall	
not	be	included	in	the	total	number	of	directors	of	the	Company.	Mr.	Jitu	Bharwani	shall	accordingly	retire	at	the	
forthcoming	Annual	General	Meeting	and	being	eligible	offers	himself	for	re-appointment.
Mr.	Jitu	Bharwani	joined	the	Board	of	Directors	as	a	Whole-time	Director	of	the	Company.
Mr.	Jitu	Bharwani	is	not	a	Director	in	any	other	Company	in	India.	He	is	holding	by	himself	465000	Equity	Shares	
in	the	Company.
Upon	his	re-appointment	as	a	director,	Mr.	Jitu	Bharwani	shall	continue	to	hold	office	as	a	Whole-time	Director.	
Accordingly,	the	Board	recommends	his	re-appointment.
Except	Mr.	Jitu	Bharwani,	personally	and	Mr.	Suresh	Bharwani	and	Mr.	Nandu	Bharwani	as	Relatives,	none	of	the	
Directors	and	Key	Managerial	Personnel	of	the	Company	and	their	relatives	is	concerned	or	interested,	financial	or	
otherwise,	in	agenda	Item	No.	3.

Appointment of other Directors (item no. 5 to 7)
For	the	details	of	Mr.	Mehul	K.	Kuwadia,	Mr.	Surjit	Banga	and	Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane,	please	refer	to	the	above	
Explanatory	Statement	in	respect	of	the	Special	Business	set	out	at	the	Item	Nos.	5	to	7	of	the	Notice	of	Annual	
General	Meeting	pursuant	to	Section	102	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.

By	Order	of	the	Board

Sd/-
Deepali Koneri

Company Secretary
Place: Mumbai
Date:	May	26,	2014

Registered Office:
Jetking	Infotrain	Limited
401,	Bussa	Udyog	Bhavan,
Tokersi	Jivraj	Road,	Sewri	(W),
Mumbai – 400 015
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Details of the Directors seeking re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting:

Name	of	the	Director Mr. Mehul K. Kuwadia Mr.	Surjit	Banga Mr.	Manoj	
Mandavgane

Mr. Jitu 
Bharwani

Date	of	Birth 27th	July	1960 9th	May	1941 30th	August	1963 26th	April,	1959

Date	of	appointment 15th June 2000 18th	December	
2012 1st	March	2013 26th	December	

1983

Qualification
B.A.	Masters	in	Labour	
Studies	with	Diploma	in	
Personal	Management

B.A.
B.	Lib	Science
C.A.I.I.B

Post	Graduate	in	
Human	Resources RSTVS

Experience	in	specific	
functional	area 29	Years 50	Years 26	Years 38	Years

Directorships	held	in	
other	companies NIL

Zee Learn Limited
Zee Media 
Corporation	
Limited
Quantum	Trustee	
Company	Private	
Limited

Bloom	Systems	
Private	Limited NIL

Chairman	/	Member	of	
the	Committee	of	the	
Board	of	the	Company

3 3 3 NIL

Chairman	/	Member	
of	Committee	of	
the	Board	of	other	
companies

NIL 4 NIL NIL

Number of shares 
held	by	Non-executive	
Director

1050 NIL NIL 465000
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The Members,

Jetking Infotrain Limited

The	Directors	present	with	immense	pleasure,	the	THIRTIETH ANNUAL REPORT	on	the	business	and	operations	
along	with	the	Audited	Financial	Statements	of	the	Company	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	on	March	31,	2014:

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS:

(Amount in `)

Particulars Current Year
(2013-14)

Previous Year
(2012-13)

Total Income 313,687,670 359,415,759

Profit before Interest, Depreciation and Tax 53,910,433 59,045,432

Less: Interest 94,840 988,378

Profit before Depreciation and Tax 53,815,593 58,057,054

Less:	Depreciation 17,488,456 15,614,896

Profit before Tax 36,327,137 42,442,158

Less:	Provision	for	Tax (10,193,000) (7,500,000)

Deferred	Tax (1,134,364) (3,341,804)

Net Profit After Tax 24,999,773 31,600,354

Prior	year	tax	adjustment 1,094,660 –

Balance	brought	forward	from	previous	year 226,161,640 201,405,629

Balance	available	for	appropriation 252,256,073 233,005,983

Appropriations

Proposed	Dividend (5,889,000) (5,889,000)

Tax	on	Proposed	Final	Dividend (1,000,836) (955,343)

Transfer	to	General	Reserve – –

Balance	carried	to	the	Balance	Sheet 245,366,237 226,161,640

Earnings	Per	Share:	Basic	(`	per	share) 4.43 5.37

Diluted	(`	per	share) 4.43 5.37

PERFORMANCE REVIEW:

During	the	Financial	Year	under	review,	the	Company	earned	the	Total	Income	of	`	3136.88	Lakhs	as	against	 
`	3594.16	Lakhs	in	the	previous	year	and	the	Net	Profit	after	Tax	of	`	260.95	Lakhs	as	against	` 316.00 Lakhs in 
the	previous	year,	resulting	in	decrease	by	17.42%	and	20.77%,	respectively.
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DIVIDEND:

Your	Directors	proposed	a	Dividend	of	`	1/–	per	Equity	Share	of	`	10/–	each	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	on	
March	31,	2014	subject	to	approval	of	Shareholders	at	the	ensuing	Annual	General	Meeting.	The	same	would	be	
paid	to	the	shareholders	in	due	course	after	the	said	approval	in	the	Annual	General	Meeting.

FIXED DEPOSITS:

Your	Company	has	not	accepted	any	deposits	from	the	public	within	the	meaning	of	Section	58A	of	the	Companies	
Act,	1956,	read	with	the	Companies	(Acceptance	of	Deposit)	Rules,	1975.	As	such	no	amount	of	Principal	or	
Interest	is	outstanding	as	on	the	Balance	Sheet	date.

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS:

Management	Discussion	and	Analysis	of	the	financial	conditions,	future	outlook	and	results	of	the	operations	of	
the	Company	for	the	year	under	review,	as	stipulated	under	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreement	with	the	Stock	
Exchanges,	is	presented	in	a	separate	section	forming	part	of	the	Annual	Report.

SUBSIDIARY COMPANY:

Your	Company	has	only	one	subsidiary	Company	namely	‘Jetking	Skill	Development	Private	Limited’.	Till	date	
the	Subsidiary	Company	has	not	commenced	any	business	therefore,	there	is	no	profit	/	loss	arisen	during	the	
Financial	Year	ending	March	31,	2014.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY AND TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION:

As	 your	Company	 is	 into	Service	 Industry,	 the	 activities	 of	 the	Company	 are	 not	 energy	 intensive.	However,	
your	Company	recognizes	the	necessity	of	conservation	of	energy	and	technology	absorption,	though	it	is	not	
practicable	to	quantify	the	same	in	monetary	terms.

In	terms	of	research,	development	and	innovation,	it	is	the	Company’s	constant	endeavor	to	be	more	efficient	in	
providing	services	and	encourages	innovation	in	its	day	to	day	practices.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:

Foreign	Exchange	Earnings	and	Outgo	during	the	Financial	Year	under	review	is	given	below:

	 (i)	 Foreign	Exchange	Earnings	 :	` 3,177,748/-

	 (ii)	 Foreign	Exchange	Outgo	 :	` 563,485/-

PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:

As	required	by	the	provisions	of	Section	217(2A)	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956,	read	with	the	Companies	(Particulars	
of	Employees)	Rules,	1975	as	amended,	 the	names	and	other	particulars	of	 the	employees	are	set	out	 in	 the	
Annexure	to	the	Directors’	Report.

However,	as	per	the	provisions	of	Section	219(1)(b)(iv)	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956,	the	Report	and	Accounts	are	
being	sent	to	all	the	shareholders	of	the	Company	and	others	entitled	thereto,	excluding	the	aforesaid	information.	
Any	shareholder	interested	in	obtaining	such	particulars	may	write	to	the	Chairman	and	Managing	Director	at	the	
Registered	Office	of	the	Company.
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DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:

Pursuant	to	Section	217(2AA)	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956	the	Directors	confirm	that:

1.	 In	the	preparation	of	the	annual	accounts,	the	applicable	accounting	standards	have	been	followed.

2.	 Appropriate	accounting	policies	have	been	selected	and	applied	consistently,	and	reasonable	and	prudent	
judgments	and	estimates	have	been	made	so	as	to	give	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	
Company	as	at	March	31,	2014	and	of	the	profit	of	the	Company	for	the	year	ended	March	31,	2014.

3.	 Proper	and	sufficient	care	has	been	taken	for	the	maintenance	of	adequate	accounting	records	in	accordance	
with	 the	 provisions	 of	 the	 Companies	 Act,	 1956	 for	 safeguarding	 the	 assets	 of	 the	 Company	 and	 for	
preventing	and	detecting	fraud	and	other	irregularities.

4.	 The	annual	accounts	have	been	prepared	on	a	going	concern	basis.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

The	 Company	 is	 committed	 to	 maintain	 the	 highest	 standards	 of	 Corporate	 Governance	 and	 adhere	 to	 the	
Corporate	Governance	 requirements	 set	 out	 by	SEBI.	 The	Company	has	 implemented	 several	 best	Corporate	
Governance	Practices	as	prevalent	globally.

In	compliance	with	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreements	entered	into	with	the	Stock	Exchanges,	a	Report	on	the	
Corporate	Governance,	along	with	the	certificate	from	the	Statutory	Auditors	of	the	Company	on	compliance	with	
the	provisions	of	the	said	Clause	is	annexed	and	forms	part	of	the	Annual	Report.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:

Your	Company	looks	forward	to	actively	contribute	to	the	social	and	economic	development	of	the	communities	
to	offer	a	better	life	to	the	weaker	sections	of	the	society	and	equip	them	with	skills	to	improve	their	way	of	life.	
For	the	same,	the	Company	is	following	the	projects	as	mentioned	below:

a) Empowering the Underprivileged

	 Jetking	has	been	actively	involved	in	spreading	computer	literacy	amongst	the	masses.	The	Gordhandas	
P.	Bharwani	Computer	Center	set	up	by	the	Company	is	testimony	to	this	effort.	These	centers	provide	
computer	training	to	students	who	come	from	underprivileged	families	&	cannot	afford	the	same.

b) Empowering the Girl Student

 A	great	believer	in	the	equality	of	the	sexes	and	independence	of	women,	Jetking	awards	a	25	percent	scholarship	
to	all	girl	students,	enabling	them	to	carve	out	a	successful	career	and	to	lead	an	independent	life.

LISTING OF EQUITY SHARES:

The	equity	shares	of	your	Company	are	listed	at	the	BSE	Limited	(BSE)	and	Delhi	Stock	Exchange	Limited	(DSE).	
The	Company	has	paid	the	Annual	Listing	Fees	to	the	above	mentioned	Stock	Exchanges	for	the	Financial	Year	
2014-2015.

DIRECTORS:

In	terms	of	the	applicable	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	and	the	Articles	of	Association	of	the	Company,	
Mr.	Jitu	G	Bharwani	Director	of	the	Company,	will	retire	by	rotation	at	ensuing	Annual	General	Meeting	and,	being	
eligible,	have	offered	he	for	re-appointment.	Your	Directors	recommend	their	re-appointment.
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The	Companies	Act,	2013	provides	for	appointment	of	Independent	Directors.	Sub-section	(10)	of	Section	149	
of	the	Companies	Act,	2013	(effective	April	01,	2014)	provides	that	Independent	Directors	shall	hold	office	for	
a	term	of	up	to	five	consecutive	years	on	the	Board	of	a	Company;	and	shall	be	eligible	for	re-appointment	on	
passing	a	Ordinary	Resolution	by	the	Shareholders	of	the	Company.

Sub-section	11	states	that	no	Independent	Director	shall	be	eligible	for	more	than	two	consecutive	terms	of	five	
years.	Sub-section	13	states	that	the	provisions	of	retirement	by	rotation	as	defined	in	sub-section	6	and	7	of	
Section	152	of	the	Act	shall	not	apply	to	such	Independent	Directors.

Our	 Non-Executive	 Independent	 Directors	 were	 appointed	 as	 Directors	 liable	 to	 retire	 by	 rotation	 under	 the	
provisions	of	the	erstwhile	Companies	Act,	1956.	The	Board	of	Directors	in	terms	of	Section	149	and	any	other	
applicable	provisions	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013,	proposed	that	all	Independent	Directors	to	be	appointed	as	an	
Independent	Director	for	five	consecutive	years	for	a	term	upto	31st	March,	2019.	

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

Your	Directors	wish	 to	express	 their	gratitude	 to	 the	Bankers,	 Financial	 Institutions,	Government	Authorities,	
Customers,	Vendors	and	Members	for	their	direct	and	indirect	co-operation	and	look	forward	to	their	continued	
support	in	the	future.

By	Order	of	the	Board

Sd/-
Suresh G. Bharwani

Chairman	&	Managing	Director

Place: Mumbai
Date:	May	26,	2014
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The	Report	on	Corporate	Governance,	for	the	Financial	Year	April	1,	2013	to	March	31,	2014	as	per	the	format	
prescribed	by	SEBI	and	incorporated	in	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreement	is	set	out	as	below:

I. COMPANY’S PHILOSOPHY ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 At	“Jetking”,	Corporate	Governance	has	always	been	the	top	priority	and	has	been	taken	high	in	letter	and	
in	spirit.	Your	Company	strongly	believes	in	maintaining	transparency,	accountability	and	integrity	which	
are	the	main	components	in	Corporate	Governance.	The	philosophy	is	manifested	in	its	operations	through	
standards	of	ethical	behavior,	both	within	 the	organization	as	well	as	 in	external	 relationships	 too.	The	
Company	aims	at	maximizing	shareholder’s	value	and	its	philosophy	is	based	on	the	fair	and	transparent	
disclosure	of	issues	related	with	the	Company’s	business,	financial	performance	and	matters	relating	to	
stakeholders’	interest.	We	believe	that	Corporate	Governance	is	the	key	element	in	improving	efficiency,	
growth	and	investor’s	confidence.

	 Your	Company’s	practices	relating	to	the	Corporate	Governance	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	March	31,	
2014	are	discussed	in	the	following	sections.

II. BOARD OF DIRECTORS

a) Composition of the Board of Directors and other Directorships and Committee Membership of the 
Directors:

	 The	Board	of	Jetking	has	an	optimum	combination	of	Executive,	Non-Executive	and	Independent	Directors.	
The	 Chairman	 being	 an	 Executive	 Director,	 the	 Listing	 Agreement	 says	 that	 at	 least	 half	 of	 the	 Board	
should	 comprise	 of	 independent	 Directors.	 Therefore,	 the	 Company	 should	 have	 at	 least	 3	 (Three)	
Independent	Directors.	As	on	March	31,	2014,	the	Board	comprises	of	6	(Six)	Directors	out	of	which	2	
(Two)	are	Executive,	3	(Three)	are	Independent	Directors	and	1	(One)	is	Non-Executive	Director.	There	is	
no	Institutional	Nominee	on	the	Board.	Details	and	Brief	Particulars	of	the	Directors	retiring	by	rotation	are	
provided	along	with	the	Notice	calling	the	Annual	General	Meeting	and	therefore	form	a	part	of	this	Annual	
Report.

	 The	 composition	 of	 the	 Board	 of	 Directors,	 their	 number	 of	 other	 Directorships,	 attendance	 at	 Board	
Meetings	(BM)	and	at	the	last	Annual	General	Meeting	(AGM)	of	the	Company	held	during	the	Financial	
Year	under	review

Name of 
Directors Designation Category No. of other 

Directorships
Attendance at 

Board Meetings
Attendance at 
previous AGM

Mr.	Suresh	G.	
Bharwani

Chairman	&	
Managing	Director Executive 1 7 Yes

Mr.	Nandu	G.	
Bharwani

JT	Managing	
Director Executive 1 7 Yes

Mr.	Jitu	G.	
Bharwani Director Non-Executive	

non-independent 0 1 No

Mr. Mehul K. 
Kuwadia Director Non-Executive	

Independent 0 7 Yes

Mr.	Surjit	
Banga Director Non-Executive	

Independent 3 7 Yes

Mr.	Manoj	M.	
Mandavgane Director Non-Executive	

Independent 1 7 Yes
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 Pursuant	 to	 the	 provisions	of	 the	Companies	Act	 1956,	Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	 and	Mr.	Surjit	 Banga,	
Independent	 Directors	 of	 the	 Company	 retire	 by	 rotation	 and	 being	 eligible,	 offer	 themselves	 for	 re-
appointment.

	 None	of	the	Directors	on	the	Board	is	a	Member	on	more	than	10	Committees	and	Chairman	of	more	than	5	
Committees	(as	per	Clause	49(I)(C)(ii))	across	all	the	companies	in	which	he	is	a	Director.	All	the	Directors	
have	made	the	requisite	disclosures	regarding	Committee	positions	held	by	them	in	other	companies	as	on	
March	31,	2014.

	 Mr.	Suresh	Bharwani,	Mr.	Nandu	Bharwani	and	Mr.	Jitu	Bharwani	are	related	to	each	other	as	brothers.	
None	of	the	other	Directors	are	related	in	terms	of	the	definition	of	‘relative’	given	under	the	Companies	
Act,	1956.

	 None	of	the	above	referred	Non-executive	Directors	have	any	material	pecuniary	relationship	or	transaction	
with	the	Company,	which	would	affect	the	independence	or	judgment	of	the	Board	of	Directors.

	 Your	Company’s	Board	of	Directors	comprises	of	individuals	with	rich	experience	and	expertise	across	a	
range	of	fields	such	as	finance	&	accounts,	general	management,	business	strategy,	etc.	Each	Member	
of	 the	Board	 is	 required	 to	observe	 integrity,	 independence,	objectivity	 and	diligence	 in	all	 the	matters	
pertaining	to	the	affairs	of	your	Company.

b) Meetings of the Board of Directors:

	 The	 Board	 of	 Directors	 met	 seven	 times	 during	 the	 year	 under	 review	 on	 20.05.2013,	 03.06.2013,	
29.07.2013,	12.08.2013,	12.11.2013,	12.02.2014	and	28.03.2014.

c) Minutes of the Board Meeting:

	 The	Minutes	of	 the	proceedings	of	 every	Board	 and	Committee	meetings	 are	prepared	 and	approved	 /	
initialed	by	the	Chairman	in	next	Meeting	from	the	conclusion	of	the	respective	meeting.

d) Information supplied to the Board:

	 The	Board	Members	are	given	agenda	papers	along	with	necessary	documents	and	information	in	advance	
of	each	meeting	of	the	Board	and	Committees.	In	addition	to	the	regular	business	items,	the	following	are	
regularly	placed	before	the	Board	to	the	extent	applicable:

 n	 Quarterly	and	Half	yearly	results	of	the	Company

 n	 Minutes	of	the	Audit	Committee	and	other	Committee	meetings

 n	 Details	of	Agreements	entered	into	by	the	Company

 n	 Particulars	of	Non-Compliance	of	any	statutory	or	Listing	requirements
e)	 Declaration	by	the	Managing	Director	under	Clause	49(I)(D)	of	the	Listing	Agreement	regarding	adherence	

to	the	Code	of	Conduct	is	forming	part	of	the	Report	on	Corporate	Governance.
f)	 In	the	preparation	of	the	Annual	Accounts,	the	applicable	accounting	standards	have	duly	been	followed	

and	there	are	no	material	departures.

III. AUDIT COMMITTEE

	 The	primary	objective	of	the	Audit	Committee	is	to	overview	and	to	maintain	a	financial	oversight	and	an	
eye	on	the	Financial	Processes/Controls/Reporting	Systems	of	the	Company	in	order	to	ensure	accurate,	
timely,	 relevant	 disclosures	 along	 with	 proper	 transparency,	 clarity,	 integrity	 and	 quality	 of	 Financial	
Reporting.
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 The	Audit	Committee	of	the	Company	is	constituted	in	Line	with	the	composition	provisions	of	clause	49	
of	the	Listing	Agreement	entered	into	with	the	Stock	Exchange	read	with	section	292	of	the	Companies	
Act,	1956.

a) Composition:
	 The	 Audit	 Committee	 of	 the	 Company	 comprises	 of	 three	 qualified	 Non-Executive	 Directors	 viz.,	 

Mr.	 Mehul	 K.	 Kuwadia,	 Mr.	 Surjit	 Banga	 and	 Mr.	 Manoj	 Mandavgane	 and	 an	 Executive	 Director	 viz.	 
Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani.

b) Terms of Reference:
	 The	role	and	terms	of	reference	of	the	Audit	Committee	cover	the	matters	specified	for	Audit	Committees	

are as follows:

1.	 Oversight	of	the	Company’s	financial	reporting	process	and	the	disclosure	of	its	financial	information	
to	ensure	that	the	Financial	Statement	is	correct,	sufficient	and	credible;

2.	 Recommending	to	the	Board,	the	appointment,	re-appointment	and,	if	required,	the	replacement	or	
removal	of	the	statutory	auditor	and	the	fixation	of	audit	fees;

3.	 Approval	 of	 payment	 to	 statutory	 auditors	 for	 any	 other	 services	 rendered	 by	 the	 statutory	
auditors;

4.	 Reviewing,	with	the	management,	the	annual	Financial	Statements	before	submission	to	the	board	
for	approval,	with	particular	reference	to:

a.	 Matters	required	to	be	included	in	the	Director’s	Responsibility	Statement	to	be	included	in	
the	Board’s	report	in	terms	of	clause	(2AA)	of	section	217	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956;

b.	 Changes,	if	any,	in	accounting	policies	and	practices	and	reasons	for	the	same;

c.	 Major	 accounting	 entries	 involving	 estimates	 based	 on	 the	 exercise	 of	 judgment	 by	
management;

d.	 Significant	adjustments	made	in	the	Financial	Statements	arising	out	of	audit	findings;

e.	 Compliance	with	listing	and	other	legal	requirements	relating	to	Financial	Statements;

f.	 Disclosure	of	any	related	party	transactions;	and

g.	 Qualifications	in	the	draft	audit	report;

5.	 Reviewing	with	the	management,	the	quarterly	Financial	Statements	before	submission	to	the	board	
for	approval;

6.	 Reviewing	with	 the	management,	 the	statement	of	uses	 /	 application	of	 funds	 raised	 through	an	
issue	(public	issue,	rights	issue,	preferential	issue,	etc.),	the	statement	of	funds	utilized	for	purposes	
other	 than	 those	stated	 in	 the	offer	document/prospectus/notice	and	 the	report	submitted	by	 the	
monitoring	agency	monitoring	 the	utilization	of	proceeds	of	a	public	or	 rights	 issue,	and	making	
appropriate	recommendations	to	the	Board	to	take	up	steps	in	this	matter;

7.	 Reviewing	with	the	management,	performance	of	statutory	and	internal	auditors,	and	adequacy	of	
the	internal	control	systems;

8.	 Reviewing	 the	 adequacy	 of	 internal	 audit	 function,	 if	 any,	 including	 the	 structure	 of	 the	 internal	
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audit	department,	staffing	and	seniority	of	the	official	heading	the	department,	reporting	structure	
coverage	and	frequency	of	internal	audit;

9.	 Discussion	with	internal	auditors	any	significant	findings	and	follow	up	there	on;

10.	 Reviewing	 the	 findings	of	 any	 internal	 investigations	by	 the	 internal	 auditors	 into	matters	where	
there	is	suspected	fraud	or	irregularity	or	a	failure	of	internal	control	systems	of	a	material	nature	
and	reporting	the	matter	to	the	Board;

11.	 Discussion	with	statutory	auditors	before	the	audit	commences,	about	the	nature	and	scope	of	audit	
as	well	as	post-audit	discussion	to	ascertain	any	area	of	concern;

12.	 To	look	into	the	reasons	for	substantial	defaults	in	the	payment	to	the	depositors,	debenture	holders,	
shareholders	(in	case	of	nonpayment	of	declared	dividends)	and	creditors;

13.	 Approval	of	appointment	of	CFO	(i.e.,	the	whole-time	Finance	Director	or	any	other	person	heading	
the	finance	function	or	discharging	that	function)	after	assessing	the	qualifications,	experience	&	
background,	etc.	of	the	candidate;

14.	 To	review	the	functioning	of	the	Whistle	Blower	mechanism;	and

15.	 Carrying	out	any	other	function	as	is	mentioned	in	the	terms	of	reference	of	the	Audit	Committee.

c) Meetings of the Committee during the year and Attendance:

	 During	the	year,	four	Audit	Committee	meetings	were	held	on	20.05.2013,	12.08.2013,	12.11.2013 and 
12.02.2014:

Meetings of the Audit Committee and Attendance of the 
Members during 2013-14

Number of Meetings

 Held Attended

Mr. Mehul K. Kuwadia 4 4

Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani 4 4

Mr.	Surjit	Banga 4 4

Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane 4 4

IV. REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

	 Your	Company	has	the	qualified	Remuneration	Committee	to	determine,	the	Company’s	policy	on	specific	
remuneration	packages	for	Executive	Directors	including	pension	rights	and	any	compensation	payment.

a) Composition:

	 The	Remuneration	Committee	of	the	Company	comprises	of	three	Non-Executive	Independent	Directors	
viz.,	Mr.	Mehul	Kuwadia	as	Chairman,	Mr.	Surjit	Banga	and	Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	as	Members	of	the	
Committee.

b) Terms of reference:

	 The	general	objective	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	is	to	determine	and	agree	with	the	Board	the	framework	
or	the	broad	policy	for	the	remuneration	for	the	Senior	Management	Personnel	 including	the	Managing	
Director	&	 the	Whole	 Time	Director.	 It	 also	measures	 the	 suitability	 of	 the	 performance	measurement	
criteria	for	the	Senior	Management	Personnel	and	also	reviews	the	notice	periods	for	Executive	Directors	
employment	contracts	administer	employee	benefits	and	incentive	plans	and	administer	stock	option	and	
other	equity-based	plans,	etc.
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	 The	terms	of	reference	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	are	as	follows:

1.	 To	approve	the	Annual	Remuneration	Plan	of	the	Company.

2.	 To	approve	the	remuneration	payable	to	the	Executive	Directors;	and

3.	 Such	other	matters	as	the	Board	may	from	time	to	time	request	 the	Remuneration	Committee	to	
examine	and	recommend.

c) Remuneration Policy:

	 The	remuneration	of	the	Managing	Director	and	Joint	Managing	Director	are	decided	by	the	Remuneration	
Committee	 based	 on	 criteria	 such	 as	 industry	 benchmarks,	 the	 Company’s	 performance	 vis-à-vis	 the	
industry,	responsibilities	shouldered,	etc.	The	Company	pays	remuneration	by	way	of	salary,	perquisites,	
allowances	(fixed	component)	and	incentive.	The	Remuneration	Committee	decides	on	the	commission	and/
or	incentive	remuneration	payable	to	the	Managing	Director	and	Joint	Managing	Director	on	determination	
of	profits	for	the	Financial	Year,	within	the	ceilings	on	net	profits	prescribed	under	Sections	198	and	309	
of	the	Companies	Act,	1956	(the	Act).

d) Meetings of the Committee during the year and Attendance:

	 During	the	year,	two	meetings	of	the	Remuneration	Committee	were	held	on	12.07.2013	and	28.03.2014

Meetings of the Remuneration Committee and Attendance of the 
Members during 2013-14

Number of Meetings

 Held Attended

Mr. Mehul K. Kuwadia 2 2

Mr.	Surjit	Banga 2 2

Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane 2 2

e) Details of remuneration paid to Executive Directors for FY 2013-14:

 Executive Directors:

Particulars *Mr. Suresh G. 
Bharwani

*Mr. Nandu G. 
Bharwani

Basic	Salary 65,00,000 78,00,000
Perquisites 868,767 868,767
Commission -- 7,50,000
Arrears	of	Commission -- 7,50,000
Contribution	to	Provident	Fund 7,80,000 936,000

 *The Company has taken Central Government approval with respect to the Remuneration of Mr. Suresh G. 
Bharwani, Chairman & Managing Director and Mr. Nandu G. Bharwani, Joint Managing Director.

 Non-executive Directors:

Name Sitting Fees Paid
Mr. Mehul K. Kuwadia 1,20,000
Mr.	Surjit	Banga 1,20,000
Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane 1,20,000
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f) Particulars of pecuniary relationship or transaction of the Non-executive Directors vis-à-vis the 
Company:

	 Apart	from	the	sitting	fees	for	attending	the	Meeting	of	the	Board	of	Directors	and	Committee	of	the	Board	
of	Directors,	no	other	fee	or	remuneration	was	paid	to	the	Non-Executive	Directors	during	the	Financial	
Year	under	consideration.

g) Number of shares and convertible instruments held by Non-Executive Directors as on the date of this 
Report are as below:

Sr. No. Name of Director No. of equity shares held
1. Mr.	Jitu	G.	Bharwani 465000
2. Mr. Mehul K. Kuwadia 1050
3. Mr.	Surjit	Banga 0
4. Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane 0

V. SHAREHOLDERS’ / INVESTORS’ GRIEVANCE COMMITTEE
	 The	Company	has	constituted	the	Shareholders’/Investors’	Grievance	Committee	(“SIGC”)	of	Directors	to	

look	into	the	complaints,	requests	and	grievances	of	the	shareholders/investors	and	ensure	their	Redressal.	
SIGC	approves	and	monitors	share	transfers,	transmissions,	dematerialisation,	rematerialisation,	issue	of	
duplicate	share	certificates,	etc.

a) Composition:
	 Shareholders’/Investors’	Grievance	Committee	comprises	of	three	Directors	viz.,	Mr.	Mehul	K.	Kuwadia	as	

Chairman	Mr.	Surjit	Banga,	Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane	and	Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani	as	Members.

b) Meetings of the Committee during the year and attendance:

	 The	 Shareholders’/Investors’	 Grievance	 Committee	 (“SIGC”)	 of	 the	 Company	 met	 4	 times	 during	 the	
Financial	Year	i.e.	20.05.2013,	12.08.2013,	12.11.2013	and	12.02.2014.

	 The	details	of	the	attendance	at	the	SIG	Committee	Meetings	held	during	the	Financial	Year	2013-14	are	as	
follows:

Meetings of the Investors’ / Shareholders’ Grievance Committee and 
Attendance of the Members during 2013-14

Number of Meetings

Held Attended

Mr. Mehul K. Kuwadia 4 4

Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani 4 4

Mr.	Surjit	Banga 4 4

Mr.	Manoj	Mandavgane 4 4

	 The	 status	 of	 the	 complaints	 received	 from	 the	 shareholders	 during	 the	 Financial	 Year	 
2013-14 is as follows:

Number	of	unresolved	complaints	as	on	April	1,	2013 –
Number	of	complaints	received	during	the	FY	2013-14 2
Number	of	complaints	resolved	to	the	satisfaction	of	the	shareholders 2
Number	of	pending	complaints	as	on	March	31,	2014 –
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VI. GENERAL BODY MEETINGS

a) Annual General Meeting:

 Details of Annual General Meetings held during the last three consecutive years

Day Date Time Venue

Friday 15.07.2011 12.30	p.m. Hotel	Ramee	Guest	Line,	757,	S.	V.	Road,	Khar	
(West), Mumbai – 400 052

Tuesday 17.07.2012 11.30 a.m. Hotel	Ramee	Guest	Line,	757,	S.	V.	Road,	Khar	
(West), Mumbai – 400 052

Tuesday 09.07.2013 11.30 a.m. Hotel	Ramee	Guest	Line,	757,	S.	V.	Road,	Khar	
(West), Mumbai – 400 052

b) Special Resolution passed at last three Annual General Meetings:

1.	 28th	AGM	held	on	July	17,	2012	–	Payment	of	Fees	 to	M/s.	Sairam	&	Sundararaman,	Chartered	
Accountants	for	holding	place	of	profit	under	Section	314(1B)	of	Companies	Act,	1956,	by	virtue	of	
Partners	of	the	aforesaid	firm	being	relatives	of	former	Independent	Director	Mr.	C.	V.	Ramana.

c) Postal Ballot:

	 During	 the	 Financial	 Year	 under	 review,	 five	 Special	 Resolutions	were	 passed	 by	 the	Members	 of	 the	
Company	vide	Postal	ballot,	result	of	which	was	disclosed	on	16.09.2013.	The	detail	of	Special	Resolutions	
passed	is	as	below:

1.	 Reappointment	and	payment	of	remuneration	to	Mr.	Suresh	G.	Bharwani	as	Managing	Director.

2.	 Reappointment	and	payment	of	remuneration	to	Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani,	Joint	Managing	Director.

3. Alteration of	the	Object	Clause	of	the	Memorandum	of	Association	of	the	Company.

4.	 Alteration	of	other	object	clause	of	Memorandum	of	Association	of	the	Company	by	insertion	of	sub-
clause	11(a)	and	(b)	after	clause	10	and	commencement	of	new	business	under	section	149(2A)	of	
the Act.

5.	 Alteration	of	other	object	clause	of	Memorandum	of	Association	of	the	Company	by	insertion	of	sub	
clause	12(a),	(b)	and	(c)	after	sub-clause	11(b)	and	commencement	of	new	business	under	section	
149(2A)	of	the	Act.

	 At	the	time	of	postal	ballot	Mr.	Pratik	M.	Shah	was	appointed	as	scrutinizer	to	receive	and	scrutinize	
the	completed	ballot	forms	received	from	the	Members	and	for	conducting	the	postal	ballot	process	
in	a	fair	and	transparent	manner.

	 	 The	result	of	the	postal	ballot	submitted	to	stock	exchanges	was	as	below:
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 Resolution 1:

	 Re-appointment	 of	 Mr.	 Suresh	 G.	 Bharwani	 as	 Managing	 Director	 of	 the	 Company	 and	 fixing	 his	
remuneration:

Sr. 
no. Particulars Details Number of 

Shares
% of total shares 

voted

1. Total	number	of	ballot	papers	received 49 25,29,364 100%

2. Total	no.	of	invalid	votes 7 3,600 0.14%

3. Abstained	from	Voting 1 1 0.00%

4. Total	no.	ballot	papers	received	in	defaced/
mutilated	condition Nil Nil Nil

5. Total	no.	of	valid	votes 42 25,25,764 99.86%

6. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	in	favour	of	the	
resolution 38 25,25,583 99.85%

7. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	against	the	resolution 3 180 0.01%

 Resolution 2:

	 Re-appointment	 of	Mr.	Nandu	G.	 Bharwani	 as	 Joint	Managing	Director	 of	 the	Company	 and	 fixing	 his	
remuneration:

Sr. 
no. Particulars Details Number of 

Shares
% of total shares 

voted

1. Total	number	of	ballot	papers	received 49 25,29,364 100%

2. Total	no.	of	invalid	votes 7 3,600 0.14%

3. Abstained	from	Voting 4 1,253 0.05%

4. Total	no.	ballot	papers	received	in	defaced/
mutilated	condition Nil Nil Nil

5. Total	no.	of	valid	votes 42 25,25,764 99.86%

6. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	in	favour	of	the	
resolution 35 25,24,331 99.80%

7. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	against	the	resolution 3 180 0.01%
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 Resolution 3:

	 Alteration	of	Main	Object	Clause	of	the	Memorandum	of	Association	of	the	Company:

Sr. 
no. Particulars Details Number of 

Shares
% of total shares 

voted

1. Total	number	of	ballot	papers	received 49 25,29,364 100%

2. Total	no.	of	invalid	votes 7 3,600 0.14%

3. Abstained	from	Voting 3 1,252 0.05%

4. Total	no.	ballot	papers	received	in	defaced/
mutilated	condition Nil Nil Nil

5. Total	no.	of	valid	votes 42 25,25,764 99.86%

6. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	in	favour	of	the	
resolution 37 25,24,407 99.81%

7. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	against	the	resolution 2 105 0.00%

 Resolution 4 & 5:

	 Alteration	of	Other	Object	Clause	of	the	Memorandum	of	Association	of	the	Company:

Sr. 
no. Particulars Details Number of 

Shares
% of total shares 

voted

1. Total	number	of	ballot	papers	received 49 25,29,364 100%

2. Total	no.	of	invalid	votes 7 3,600 0.14%

3. Abstained	from	Voting 4 1,253 0.05%

4. Total	no.	ballot	papers	received	in	defaced/
mutilated	condition Nil Nil Nil

5. Total	no.	of	valid	votes 42 25,25,764 99.86%

6. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	in	favour	of	the	
resolution 37 25,24,421 99.81%

7. Total	no.	of	votes	polled	against	the	resolution 1 90 0.00%

VII. CODE OF CONDUCT

	 The	Board	of	Directors	of	your	Company	has	prescribed	a	Code	of	Conduct	for	all	Members	of	the	Board	
and	 the	 Senior	Management	 of	 your	 Company.	 The	 Code	 of	 Conduct	 is	 available	 on	 your	 Company’s	
website i.e. https://www.jetking.com

	 All	the	Members	of	the	Board	and	the	Senior	Management	personnel	of	the	Company	have	confirmed	their	
compliance	with	the	Code	of	Conduct	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	March	31,	2014.	A	declaration	to	this	
effect	signed	by	the	Chairman	&	Managing	Director	is	annexed.
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VIII. DISCLOSURES

a) Related Party Transactions:

	 Other	than	the	transactions	entered	into	in	the	normal	course	of	business	for	which	the	necessary	approvals	
are	taken	and	disclosures	made,	the	Company	has	not	entered	into	any	materially	significant	transactions	
with	the	related	parties,	i.e.,	transactions	of	the	Company	of	material	nature,	with	its	Promoters,	Directors	
or	the	Management,	their	subsidiaries	or	relatives,	etc.	that	may	have	potential	conflict	with	the	interest	
of	 the	Company	at	 large.	However,	 a	 list	of	 related	parties	as	per	 the	Accounting	Standard	18	and	 the	
transactions	entered	into	with	them	is	given	in	the	Notes	to	Accounts	annexed	to	the	Balance	Sheet	as	at 
March	31,	2014	and	Statement	of	Profit	&	Loss	of	the	Company	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	on	that	date.

b) Subsidiary Company:

	 The	company	has	one	subsidiary	company	name	‘Jetking	Skill	Development	Private	Limited’	the	company	
incorporated	under	Companies	Act,	1956	on	January,	01, 2013.

c) Details of Penalties or Structures:

	 There	 has	 not	 been	 any	 instance	 of	 non–compliance	 by	 the	Company	 on	 any	matter	 related	 to	 capital	
markets.	Hence	the	question	of	Penalties	or	Structures	being	imposed	by	SEBI	or	Stock	Exchanges	does	
not arise.

d) Compliance with the mandatory requirements of Clause 49:

	 Your	Company	has	complied	with	the	mandatory	requirements	of	the	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreement	
as	applicable	to	it.

e) Disclosure of accounting treatment:

	 The	 Accounting	 Standards,	 Prescribed	 in	 Company	 (Accounting	 Standard)	 Rule,	 2006	 notified	 by	 the	
central	Government	and	applicable	to	the	Company,	were	followed	by	the	Company	while	preparing	the	
Financial	Statements.

f) Risk Management:

	 Though	Identification	and	Evaluation	of	Business	Risks	is	a	continuous	process	but	early	risk	identification	
and	 appropriate	 counter-measures	 have	 enabled	 the	 Company	 to	 reconcile	 creativity	 with	 industry.	 A	
Comprehensive	Risk	Warning	System	incorporates	all	the	key	aspects	of	Risk	Management	which	enables	
the	Company	to	 identify	and	manage	strategic	and	operational	risks	at	 the	Individual,	Management	and	
Board	levels.	The	detailed	Risk	Assessment	and	Minimization	Process	undertaken	by	the	Company	have	
been	given	in	other	section	of	this	Report.

g) Management Discussion and Analysis:

	 The	Management	Discussion	&	Analysis	 forms	 part	 of	 the	 Annual	Report	 and	 include	 various	matters	
specified	in	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreement.	Further,	no	material	transaction	has	been	entered	into	by	
the	Company	with	the	Senior	Management	Personnel	that	may	have	a	potential	conflict	with	the	interest	of	
the	Company	at	large.	The	declarations	to	this	effect	have	been	submitted	by	all	the	Senior	Management	
Employees.

IX. CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

	 The	certificate	in	respect	of	compliance	with	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreement	relating	to	the	Corporate	
Governance	is	annexed	and	will	be	sent	to	the	stock	exchanges	along	with	the	Annual	Report.
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X. CEO / CFO CERTIFICATION

 The	Chairman	&	Managing	Director	of	the	Company	gave	certification	on	the	Financial	Statements	and	other	
specified	matters	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	March	31,	2014,	and	the	same	was	placed	before	the	Board.

XI. RECONCILIATION OF SHARE CAPITAL AUDIT

	 As	stipulated	by	SEBI,	a	Share	Capital	Audit	is	carried	out	by	an	independent	Practicing	Company	Secretary	
on	quarterly	basis	to	confirm	reconciliation	of	the	issued	and	listed	capital,	shares	held	in	dematerialised	
and	physical	mode	and	status	of	Register	of	Members.

XII. COMPLIANCE WITH NON-MANDATORY REQUIREMENTS

a) The Board of Directors:
	 The	Company	has	adopted	its	own	Guidelines	for	composition	of	the	Board	of	Directors,	Committees	of	the	

Board	and	Retirement	Age	of	Directors,	which	take	into	account	the	provisions	of	the	Listing	Agreement,	
the	Companies	Act,	1956	and	other	applicable	laws.

b) Remuneration Committee:
	 Details	are	already	given	under	the	caption	‘Remuneration	Committee’	in	the	earlier	part	at	the	Report.

c) Shareholders rights:
	 In	addition	to	publishing	its	quarterly	results	in	English	and	Marathi	news	papers	having	wide	circulation,	

the	Company	uploads	its	quarterly	results	and	shareholding	pattern	and	corporate	governance	reports	and	
all	other	disclosures	submitted	to	stock	exchanges	on	its	website	https://www.jetking.com

d) Whistle Blower Policy:
	 Your	Company	has	established	a	mechanism	for	employees	to	report	concerns	about	unethical	behavior,	

actual	or	suspected	fraud,	or	violation	of	code	of	conduct	or	ethics	policy	of	the	Company.	It	also	provides	
for	adequate	safeguards	against	victimization	of	employees	who	avail	of	the	mechanism,	and	also	allows	
direct	access	to	the	Chairperson	of	the	Audit	Committee	in	exceptional	cases.	

	 To	further	affirm	that	no	employee	has	been	denied	access	to	the	Audit	Committee.

e) Audit qualifications:

	 During	the	year	under	review,	there	was	no	audit	qualification	in	the	Auditor’s	Report	on	the	Company’s	
Financial	Statements.	The	Company	continues	to	adopt	best	practices	to	ensure	a	regime	of	unqualified	
Financial	Statements.

f) Mechanism for evaluating Non-Executive Members:

	 The	Board	of	Directors	of	the	Company	presently	comprises	four	Non-Executive	Directors.	The	Directors	
appointed	on	the	Board	are	from	diverse	fields	relevant	to	the	Company’s	business	and	have	long-standing	
experience	and	expertise	 in	 the	 respective	 fields.	They	have	considerable	experience	 in	managing	 large	
corporates	and	have	been	in	public	life	for	decades.	The	enormously	rich	background	of	the	Directors	is	of	
considerable	value	to	the	Company.

	 Non-Executive	Directors	add	substantial	value	through	the	deliberations	at	the	Meetings	of	the	Board	and	
Committees	thereof.	Besides	contributing	at	the	meetings	of	the	Board	and	Committees,	the	Non-Executive	
Directors	also	have	offline	deliberations	with	the	Management	of	the	Company	and	add	value	through	such	
deliberations.
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	 As	regards	the	other	non-mandatory	requirements,	the	Board	has	taken	cognizance	of	the	same	and	shall	
consider	adopting	the	same	as	and	when	necessary.

XIII.  MEANS OF COMMUNICATION

a) Quarterly/ Half yearly/ Annual Results:

	 Quarterly/Half	yearly/Annual	results	are	regularly	submitted	to	the	Stock	Exchanges	where	the	shares	of	the	
Company	are	listed	pursuant	to	the	provisions	of	Listing	Agreement	and	are	published	in	the	newspapers.	
The	Company	has	also	displayed	 the	 results	as	specified	under	Clause	41	of	 the	Listing	Agreement	on	
the	 Company’s	 website	 i.e.	 https://www.jetking.com	 which	 also	 contains	 a	 separate	 dedicated	 section	
“Investors”.

b) Newspapers wherein results are normally published:

	 Business	Line	(English	daily	news	papers)	and	Lokmat	(Marathi	regional	language	news	paper)

c) Whether Website also displays official news releases:

	 Yes,	on	the	Company’s	website	i.e.	https://www.jetking.com

d) Extensive Business Reporting Language (XBRL):

	 XBRL	 is	 language	 for	 electronic	 communication	 of	 business	 financial	 data.	 It	 offers	major	 benefits	 to	
all	 those	who	have	 to	create,	 transmit,	use	or	analyze	such	 information	which	aids	better	analysis	and	
decision	making.	Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs	(MCA)	vide	 its	circular	no.	37/2011	dated	June	7,	2011,	
had	mandated	certain	companies	to	file	their	Annual	Accounts	vide	this	mode.	The	Company	has	filed	its	
Annual	Accounts	on	MCA	through	XBRL.

e) Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA):

	 The	Company	has	periodically	filed	all	the	necessary	documents	with	the	MCA.

f) SEBI Complaints Redress System (SCORES):

	 A	centralized	web	based	complaints	redress	system	which	serves	as	a	centralized	database	of	all	complaints	
received,	enables	uploading	of	Action	Taken	Report	(ATRs)	by	the	concerned	companies	and	online	viewing	
by	the	investors	of	actions	taken	on	the	complaint	and	its	current	status.

g) Letters:

	 Letters	reminding	the	investors	to	claim	their	pending	/	unclaimed	dividends	are	regularly	dispatched	to	
investors.

h) Annual report:

	 The	Annual	Report	containing	inter	alia	the	Audited	Accounts,	consolidated	Financial	Statements,	Directors’	
Report,	 Auditors’	 Report	 and	 other	 important	 information	 is	 circulated	 to	 the	 investors.	 Management	
Discussion	and	Analysis	Report	forms	a	part	of	the	Annual	Report.

	 Annual	 reports	 are	 also	 available	 in	 the	 Investors	 Corner	 Section	 on	 the	 Company’s	 website	 i.e.	 
https://www.jetking.com

i) Whether presentations made to institutional investors or to the analysts: 

 No
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XIV. GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

1. Annual	General	Meeting

–	Date	and	Time : July	14,	2014,	11.30	a.m.

– Venue : “Executive	Enclave,	331,	Dr.	Ambedkar	Road,	Pali	Hill,	
Bandra	(W),	Mumbai	–	400	050”

2. Financial	Year : April	1,	2013	to	March	31,	2014

3. Proposed	Dividend	and	Dividend	
Payment	Date

: Your	Directors	propose	a	final	dividend	of	`	1/–	per	Equity	
Share of `	10/–	each	for	the	Financial	Year	2013-14

4. Book	Closure : The	Register	of	Members	and	the	Share	Transfer	Books	of	
the	Company	will	 remain	closed	from	July	11	to	July	14,	
2014	(both	days	inclusive)

5. Listing	on	Stock	Exchanges : BSE	Limited
Delhi	Stock	Exchange	Ltd.

6. Stock	Code : BSE	Stock	Code:	517063
DSE:	5435

7. ISIN	Code : INE919C01019

8. Registrar	and	Share	Transfer	Agent : Sharex	Dynamic	(India)	Pvt.	Ltd.
Unit – 1, Luthra Industrial Premises, Safed Pool, Andheri 
Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400 072
Tel: 2851 5606/2851 5644, Fax: 2851 2885
Contact	Person	–	Mr.	Shashi	Kumar
Email: sharexindia@vsnl.com

9. Share	Transfer	System : Trading	in	the	Company’s	shares	on	the	Stock	Exchanges	
takes	place	 in	electronic	 form.	However,	physical	shares	
are	normally	transferred	and	returned	within	15	days	from	
the	date	of	lodgment	provided	the	requisite	documents	are	
in order

10. Dematerialization	of	Shares	and	
Liquidity

: 92.64%	 of	 the	 outstanding	 equity	 shares	 have	 been	
dematerialized	 as	 on	March	 31,	 2014.	 Trading	 in	 equity	
shares	of	the	Company	is	permitted	only	in	dematerialized	
form

11. Details	of	use	of	public	funds	
obtained	in	last	three	years

: N.A.

12. Outstanding	GDRs/ADRs/	Warrants	
or	any	Convertible	Instruments,	
Conversion	Date	and	likely	impact	
on	equity

: Nil
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13. Location	of	Training	Centres : (1)	 401,	Bussa	Udyog	Bhavan,
	 Tokersi	Jivraj	Road,
 Sewri (W), Mumbai – 400 015
 Tel: 24156486 / 24156528
(2)	 Pragati	Deep	Building,	2nd Floor,
	 Plot	No.8,	Laxmi	Nagar	Dist.	Centre,
	 Delhi	-	110	092
 Tel: 22044073 / 22241723
(3)	 209,	Archana	Arcade,	IT	Complex,
	 10/3/189	&190,	St.	John’s	Road,
	 Behind	Hotel	Ramakrishna,
	 Secunderabad	–	500	025
	 Tel:	6316912	/	6316913
(4)	 Elgin	Apt.,	1st Floor, 1A,
	 Ashutosh	Mukherjee	Road,
 Kolkata – 700 020
 Tel: 3240 1107
(5)	 Northern	Height	Building,
	 2nd	Floor,	Block	A,
	 105/28,	Bidhaan	Nagar	Road,
	 Near	Bidhaan	Nagar	Railway	Station,
 Kolkata – 700 067
	 Tel:	65481955
(6)	 Door	No.	41,	Essar	Tower,
 1st	Floor,	Above	Kotak	Mahindra	Bank,
	 Venkat	Narayanan	Road,
	 T.	Nagar,	Chennai	–	600	017
 Tel: 42025253 / 42025254
(7) 3rd	Floor,	Elegane	Arcade,
	 Opp.	Maninagar	Railway	Station,
	 Beside	Satyam	Tower,	Maninagar,
 Ahmedabad – 380 008

14. Address	for	correspondence : 401,	Bussa	Udyog	Bhavan,
Tokersi	Jivraj	Road,
Sewri (W),
Mumbai – 400 015
Tel: 2415 6586, 2415 6528

15. Stock Price Data

	 The	performance	of	the	equity	shares	of	the	Company	on	the	BSE	Limited	(BSE)	depicting	the	liquidity	of	
the	Company’s	equity	shares	for	the	Financial	Year	ended	March	31,	2014,	on	the	said	exchanges,	is	given	
hereunder:-
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 BSE Market Price Data: High, Low during each month in last Financial Year

Month
Jetking Infotrain Limited S&P BSE SENSEX

High Low Close High Low Close
Apr-13 55.00 39.00 42.00 19,622.68 18,144.22 19,504.18
May-13 49.90 42.00 48.00 20,443.62 19,451.26 19,760.30
Jun-13 50.00 44.35 48.50 19,860.19 18,467.16 19,395.81
Jul-13 47.10 40.75 44.50 20,351.06 19,126.82 19,345.70
Aug-13 45.45 35.00 41.00 19,569.20 17,448.71 18,619.72
Sep-13 40.95 32.40 32.50 20,739.69 18,166.17 19,379.77
Oct-13 34.00 30.00 30.10 21,205.44 19,264.72 21,164.52
Nov-13 36.25 31.30 36.00 21,321.53 20,137.67 20,791.93
Dec-13 38.00 31.05 31.50 21,483.74 20,568.70 21,170.68
Jan-14 33.95 25.85 27.55 21,409.66 20,343.78 20,513.85
Feb-14 31.00 26.10 30.80 21,140.51 19,963.12 21,120.12
Mar-14 33.95 28.85 32.10 22,467.21 20,920.98 22,386.27

16.  Share Price Performance

17. Distribution of shareholding as on March 31, 2014

No. of Equity Shares No. of
Shareholders

% of Total
Shareholders No. of Shares % of Total

Shares
1 to 100 1499 44.06 69472 1.18
101 to 200 387 11.38 64487 1.10
201 to 500 500 14.70 173619 2.95
501 to 1000 548 16.11 360775 6.13
1001 to 5000 387 11.38 714324 12.13
5001 to 10000 35 1.03 241127 4.09
10001 to 100000 39 1.15 1433415 24.34
100001	and	above 7 0.21 2831781 48.09
Total 3402 100.00 5889000 100.00
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18. Shareholding Pattern as on March 31, 2014

Category No. of Shareholders Voting Strength (%) No. of Shares Held
Promoter	&	Promoter	Group 20 50.76 2,989,060
Institutions 8 5.79 341,180
Bodies	Corporate 84 2.92 171,743
Individuals 3235 39.28 2,313,196
OCBs	&	NRIs 49 1.23 72,704
Clearing	Members 6 0.02 1,117
TOTAL 3402 100.00 5,889,000

19. Share Transfer/Dematerialisation
	 Share	Transfer	 requests	 are	generally	 acted	upon	within	15	days	 from	 the	date	of	 receipt.	 In	 case,	 no	

response	is	received	within	35	days	of	the	lodgment	of	transfer	request,	the	lodger	should	immediately	
write	to	the	Company	with	full	details	so	that	the	necessary	action	could	be	taken	to	safeguard	the	interest	
of	the	concerned	against	any	possible	loss	/	interception	during	postal	transit.

	 Dematerialization	requests	duly	completed	in	all	respects	are	normally	processed	within	10	days	of	their	
receipts.

By	Order	of	the	Board

Sd/-
Suresh G. Bharwani

Chairman	&	Managing	Director
Place: Mumbai
Date:	May	26,	2014

CERTIFICATION REGARDING COMPLIANCE BY THE BOARD MEMBERS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PERSONNEL 
WITH THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT
This	is	to	certify	that	in	accordance	with	the	requirement	of	Clause	49(I)(D)(ii)	of	the	Listing	Agreement,	all	the	
Members	of	the	Board	and	Senior	Management	Personnel	have	affirmed	that	to	the	best	of	their	knowledge	and	
belief,	they	have	complied	with	the	Code	of	Conduct	in	respect	of	the	Financial	Year	ended	on	March	31,	2014.

By	Order	of	the	Board

Sd/-
Suresh G. Bharwani

Chairman	&	Managing	Director

Place: Mumbai
Date:	May	26,	2014
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) AND CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER (CFO) CERTIFICATION

To
The	Board	of	Directors
Jetking	Infotrain	Limited

Dear	Sirs,

Sub: CEO / CFO Certificate

(Issued in accordance with provisions of Clause 49 of the Listing Agreement)

We,	Suresh	G	Bharwani	Managing	Director,	and	Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani	JT	Managing	Director	of	Jetking	Infotrain	
Limited	to	the	best	of	our	knowledge	and	belief,	certify	that:

1.	 We	have	reviewed	the	Balance	Sheet	as	at	March	31,	2014	statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	and	also	cash	
flow	statement	for	the	year	than	ended	and	summery	of	significant	Accounting	policies,	other	Explantory	
Information	Accounts	and	the	Directors’	Report	and	we	state	that:

a.	 These	statements	do	not	contain	any	materially	untrue	statement	or	omit	any	material	fact	or	contain	
statements	that	may	be	misleading;

b.	 These	statements	present	a	true	and	fair	view	of	the	Company’s	affairs	and	are	in	compliance	with	
current	accounting	standards,	applicable	laws	and	regulations.

2.	 No	 transactions	 entered	 into	 by	 the	Company	 during	 the	 year	 are	 fraudulent,	 illegal	 or	 violative	 of	 the	
Company’s	Code	of	Conduct.

3.	 We	 are	 responsible	 for	 establishing	 and	 maintaining	 disclosure	 controls	 and	 procedures	 and	 internal	
controls	over	Financial	Reporting	for	the	Company,	and	we	have	:

a.	 Designed	such	disclosures,	 controls	 and	procedures	 to	 ensure	 that	material	 information	 relating	
to	 the	Company	 is	made	known	to	us	particularly	during	 the	period	 in	which	 this	report	 is	being	
prepared.

b.	 Designed	such	internal	control	over	Financial	Reporting,	or	caused	such	internal	control	over	Financial	
Reporting	 to	 be	 designed	under	 our	 supervision,	 to	 provide	 reasonable	 assurance	 regarding	 the	
reliability	of	Financial	Reporting	and	the	preparation	of	Financial	Statements	for	external	purposes	in	
accordance	with	Generally	Accepted	Accounting	Principles	(GAAP).

c.	 Evaluated	the	effectiveness	of	the	Company’s	disclosures,	controls	and	procedures.

d.	 Disclosed	in	this	report	any	change	in	the	Company’s	internal	control	over	Financial	Reporting	that	
occurred	during	the	Company’s	most	recent	fiscal	year	that	has	materially	affected,	or	is	reasonably	
likely	to	materially	affect	the	Company’s	internal	control	over	Financial	Reporting.

4.	 We	have	disclosed,	based	on	our	most	recent	evaluation,	wherever	applicable,	to	the	Company’s	Auditors	
and	 the	Audit	Committee	of	 the	Company’s	Board	of	Directors	 (and	persons	performing	 the	equivalent	
functions):
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a.	 There	 were	 no	 deficiencies	 in	 the	 design	 or	 operation	 of	 internal	 controls,	 that	 could	 adversely	
affect	the	Company’s	ability	to	record,	process,	summarise	and	report	financial	data,	and	there	have	
been	no	material	weaknesses	in	internal	controls	over	Financial	Reporting	including	any	corrective	
actions	with	regard	to	deficiencies.

b.	 There	were	no	significant	changes	in	internal	control	during	the	year	covered	by	this	report.

c.	 All	significant	changes	in	accounting	policies	during	the	year,	if	any,	and	that	the	same	have	been	
disclosed	in	the	notes	to	the	financial	statements.

d.	 There	were	no	 instances	of	 fraud	of	which	we	 are	 aware,	 that	 involve	 the	Management	or	 other	
employees	who	have	a	significant	role	in	the	Company’s	Internal	Control	System.

5.	 We	further	declare	 that	all	Board	Members	and	Senior	Managerial	Personnel	have	affirmed	compliance	
with	the	Code	of	Conduct	for	the	current	year.

	 	 	 	 	 Yours	Sincerely,

     Sd/-
Place: Mumbai Suresh G. Bharwani Nandu G. Bharwani
Date:	May	26,	2014	 Managing	Director						 JT	Managing	Director



4030th ANNUAL REPORT 2013-14

AUDITORS’ CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

To

The Members of

Jetking	Infotrain	Limited

We	have	examined	the	compliance	of	conditions	of	corporate	governance	by	Jetking Infotrain Limited, for the 
year	ended	on	March	31,	2014,	as	stipulated	in	Clause	49	of	the	Listing	Agreement	of	the	said	Company	with	
Stock	Exchanges.

The	compliance	of	conditions	of	Corporate	Governance	is	the	responsibility	of	the	management.	Our	examination	
was	 limited	 to	procedures	 and	 implementation	 thereof,	 adopted	by	 the	Company	 for	 ensuring	 compliance	of	
the	 conditions	 of	Corporate	Governance.	 It	 is	 neither	 an	 audit	 nor	 an	 expression	of	 opinion	 on	 the	 Financial	
Statements	of	the	Company.

In	our	opinion	and	to	the	best	of	our	information	and	according	to	the	explanations	given	to	us,	we	certify	that	
the	Company	has	complied	with	the	conditions	of	Corporate	Governance	as	stipulated	in	the	above	mentioned	
Listing	Agreement.

We	further	state	that	such	compliance	is	neither	an	assurance	as	to	the	future	viability	of	the	Company	nor	of	the	
efficiency	or	effectiveness	with	which	the	Management	has	conducted	the	affairs	of	the	Company.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP

Chartered	Accountants

Firm	Reg.	No.:	121750W/W-100010

(Ramesh Gupta)

PARTNER

Membership	No.	:	102306

Mumbai,	May	26,	2014 
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Government Initiatives

India	is	at	the	cusp	of	reaping	the	biggest	benefit	of	the	century.	Its	huge	pool	of	young	manpower	coupled	with	
a	stable	government	at	the	centre	is	slated	to	be	the	biggest	growth	driver	for	next	decade.	The	decisive	election	
results	are	expected	to	bring	in	a	radical	social	and	economical	change	in	India	primarily	propelled	through	skilled	
and	efficient	manpower.		

India’s	“demographic	dividend”	can	transpire	it	into	not	only	the	league	of	most	developed	nations	but	also	into	a	
global	reservoir	of	skilled	resource	to	the	world	just	like	China	is	a	manufacturing	hub	to	the	world.	Of	the	total	1.3	
billion	population,	India	constitutes	0.8	billion	working	age	(16-64)	population	that	can	either	prove	to	be	a	boon	
or	bane	for	the	Indian	economy	based	on	the	skill	quotient	they	posses.	It	is	crucial	that	its	demographic	dividend	
is	harnessed	and	maximized	to	the	fullest	by	skilling	them	based	on	industry	requirements	rather	them	imparting	
academic	training	with	‘one-size-fits-all’	principle.	Recognizing	the	importance	of	skill	manpower	in	the	country,	the	
new	Prime	Minister	has	for	the	first	time	created	a	dedicated	ministry	to	take	the	cause	to	the	next	level.

Setting	 up	 of	 federal	ministry	 overlooking	 all	 the	 skill	 development	 initiatives	 and	 agencies	 will	 provide	much	
needed	direction	and	policy	boost	to	amplify	the	skill	development	drive.	Jetking	has	been	a	key	contributor	in	skill	
development	through	its	association	with	various	skill	development	programs	in	Gujarat	and	Haryana	states.	In	last	
financial	year,	Jetking	trained	more	than	1,600	students	in	these	states.	With	only	4.3	million	capacity	to	train	as	
against	the	requirement	of	12.0	million	to	be	trained	every	year,	the	role	of	private	and	established	institutes	like	
us	has	become	imperative	for	achieving	the	government	target	of	training	500	million	youths	by	2020.	Decisive	
government,	focused	policy	initiative	towards	youth	development	coupled	with	Jetking’s	successful	track	record	in	
skilling	the	youth	would	pave	the	way	for	securing	fresh	mandate	in	skill	development	drive.								

Last	 year,	government	under	 the	ambit	of	National	Skill	Development	Corporation	 (NSDC)	 launched	one	of	 the	
world’s	largest	skill	reward	programme	called	STAR	in	order	to	further	proliferate	and	encourage	youths	towards	
skill	development	training.	Executed	through	respective	Sector	Skill	Councils	(SSC),	successful	candidates,	upon	
completion	of	program	were	awarded	certificate	along	with	monetary	reward	of	Rs.10,000.	

Jetking	not	only	leveraged	the	new	opportunity	by	training	the	students	under	STAR	program	during	the	year	but	
also	diversified	and	entered	into	retail	and	sales	training	in	association	with	Retailers	Association’s	Skill	Council	of	
India	(RASCI).	Launched	as	a	new	course	offering	–	“Retailibility”,	Jetking,	through	this	initiative	expanded	its	
offerings	by	entering	into	new	segment	of	retail	training.	Categorized	as	sunrise	and	amongst	the	fastest	growing	
sectors	with	multitude	of	retail	stores	in	various	formats,	the	retail	sector	faces	huge	shortage	of	skilled	manpower	
to	administer	and	run	the	stores	at	various	levels.	

Various	studies	indicates	that	with	the	greater	proliferation	of	retail	stores	in	the	form	of	malls,	hyper	markets,	super	
markets,	and	other	specialty	formats,	there	will	be	a	requirement	of	more	than	17.0	million	skilled	resources	by	
2022.	Jetking’s	expertise	in	providing	employability	and	its	established	track	record	of	placing	students	along	with	
absence	of	strong	national	player	to	cater	to	the	needs	of	the	industry	provided	right	ingredient	for	the	company	to	
tap	the	emerging	opportunity.

IT Industry

In	 FY2014,	 the	 Indian	 IT-BPM	 industry	 is	 estimated	 to	 account	 for	 revenues	of	USD	118	billion,	 cementing	 its	
leadership	position	in	the	global	sourcing	arena	and	highlighting	its	increasing	importance	in	the	domestic	market.	
With	a	large,	multicultural	and	highly	aspirational	workforce	of	over	3.1million	employees,	the	industry	is	the	largest	
private	sector	employer	in	India.	
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Increase	in	global	technology	spending	and	opportunities	created	through	adoption	of	disruptive	technologies	are	
expected	to	propel	growth	in	next	financial	year	with	NASSCOM	targeting	a	growth	of	over	13-15%	for	FY	2015.	
The	gradual	revival	in	consumer	confidence	and	increased	discretionary	spending	in	US	and	Europe	is	expected	to	
provide	the	much	needed	push	to	the	stagnated	growth	of	the	industry.	Along	with	the	revival	in	global	economy,	
stable	 government	 in	 India	 with	 emphasis	 on	 growth,	 e-governance	 and	 transparency	 in	 various	 government	
processes	will	augur	well	at	both	domestic	and	international	front	for	the	Indian	companies.	

With	a	fresh	thrust	in	the	form	of	new	and	agile	government,	rising	confidence	among	the	businesses,	renewed	
investment	cycle	and	revival	in	global	and	key	international	market	is	expected	to	positively	trickle	down	towards	
increased	IT	&	ITeS	spending.	Infrastructure	management	and	Cloud	computing	within	IT	&	ITeS	is	slated	to	be	
the	biggest	beneficiary.	Adoption	of	SMAC	(Social,	Mobility,	Analytics,	Cloud)	and	other	disruptive	technologies	
will	provide	further	push	to	Infrastructure	and	Cloud	computing	segment.	With	an	incremental	demand	of	1	million	
professionals	in	IMS	(Infrastructure	Management)	and	around	2	million	in	cloud	computing	according	to	leading	
research	agencies,	the	segment	is	expected	to	be	the	fastest	growing	within	IT	&	ITeS	sector.	

With	over	50	million	small	and	medium	enterprises	still	awaiting	to	reap	the	benefits	of	IT	and	ITeS	services	along	
with	 opening	 of	 key	 sectors	 such	 as	 banks,	 retail,	 infrastructure,	 e-governance	 and	 e-commerce,	 an	 increased	
spending	will	percolate	towards	IMS	and	cloud	computing	services	during	the	year	generating	fresh	demand	of	
network	and	IMS	professionals.

Centre Expansion

Amidst	huge	growth	potential	emanating	from	multiple	sectors	and	avenues,	Jetking	for	the	FY	2014-15	has	set	
an	aggressive	 target	of	opening	around	30	 learning	centres	 in	different	parts	of	 India.	This	will	 further	 increase	
brand	presence	in	unrepresented	area	and	help	in	strengthening	top	and	bottom	line	of	the	company.	With	these	
centres,	Jetking	will	be	adding	close	to	6,700	new	capacity	to	the	system	which	would	translate	significant	revenue	
acceleration	and	margin	expansion	in	coming	years.	

Apart	from	domestic	front,	Jetking	is	looking	to	expand	its	presence	in	countries	with	similar	demographics	and	
demand	from	industries.	In	previous	financial	year,	Jetking	successfully	opened	its	second	international	centre	in	
Nepal	and	strengthened	its	presence	in	Vietnam.	Owing	to	a	pool	of	huge	target	segment	in	African	and	South	Asian	
Countries,	Jetking	during	FY	2014-15	is	targeting	to	add	five	new	centres	in	these	identified	regions.

I. Industry Structure and Developments

 Digitized Content :

	 During	FY	2012-13	Jetking	 introduced	digitized	 learning	content	 for	 the	 students.	The	 initiative	was	well	
appreciated	and	accepted	by	business	partners,	students	and	industry	alike	as	this	provided	the	much	needed	
uniformity	in	training	all	across	the	centres.	Introduction	of	digitized	content	with	video,	audio,	animation	and	
quizzes	not	only	raised	the	quality	bar	in	terms	of	deliverables	to	the	students,	it	also	helped	as	an	effective	
and	additional	means	in	providing	engaging	and	stimulating	learning	environment	to	the	students.		

 Daily Assessment:

	 To	make	 the	 student’s	 learning	more	 effective	 and	measurable	 and	 ensure	 inclusive	 development	 of	 all	
students	in	the	class,	during	FY	2013-14	the	Company	augmented	the	digitized	content	by	integrating	it	with	
a	daily	assessment	engine	for	the	students.	In	contrast	to	the	reactive	assessment	after	an	interval	of	2-3	
months,	students	are	now	assessed	on	a	daily	basis	just	after	the	completion	of	each	session.	The	proactive	
measure	 to	 assess	 and	gauge	 the	performance	 and	understanding	of	 each	 student	 on	 real	 time	basis	 is	
facilitating	the	instructor	to	address	the	individual	challenges.
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	 Proactive,	 systematic	 and	 regular	 assessment	 will	 identify	 students	 who	 would	 require	 more	 intensive	
instruction	 or	 intervention	 for	 their	 development	 and	 learning.	 Through	 periodical	 reports,	 results,	 and	
multiple	methods	of	careful	observation	of	individual	student,	instructor	would	be	able	to	modify	or	improvise	
teaching	strategy	for	the	students.				

 Learning Management System (LMS):

	 Jetking	for	the	FY	2014-15	is	embracing	for	 itself	a	biggest	re-incarnation	in	terms	of	delivery	of	content	
imparted	to	the	students.	Along	with	physical	class-room	training,	all	students	will	be	extended	additional	
training	platform	 in	 the	 form	of	e-learning	or	Learning	Management	System	(LMS).	With	an	endeavor	 to	
provide	the	flexibility	to	learn	anytime,	anywhere,	the	platform	will	facilitate	the	students	to	learn	at	their	own	
pace.	

	 Keeping	abreast	with	the	changing	dynamics	of	technology,	Jetking	is	aligning	itself	to	the	“digital	natives”	of	
21st	century	by	introducing	LMS	that	will	make	training	more	accessible	and	future	proof	for	the	organization	
and	students	alike.	Bundled	with	Jetking’s	proprietary	digitized	content,	daily	assessment	engine,	session	
calendar,	batch	management,	collaboration	tools,	notice	board,	student/faculty	interface,	feedback	forms	and	
virtual	class-room	the	LMS	will	provide	an	interface	for	the	students	to	learn	at	greater	ease	and	flexibility.	
Being	device	agnostic,	the	platform	will	open	sea	of	opportunity	for	the	organization	in	the	coming	years.	

 Business Intelligence Tool:

	 Jetking	 every	 year	 collects	 thousands	 of	 data	 points	 generated	 through	 student	 enquiry,	 enrollment,	
assessment,	product	etc	through	various	channels	and	means	from	all	across	India.	These	huge	data	sets	
reside	 in	 the	 system	 in	 silos	 containing	 valuable	 business	 inputs	 and	 insights	 about	 student’s	 behavior	
and	trends.	To	make	these	isolated	data	more	meaningful	and	intelligent	for	business	decision,	Jetking	is	
integrating	a	customized	business	intelligence	tool	with	its	existing	student	life-cycle	software.	This	will	aid	
in	combining	dispersed	data	points	into	reliable	and	insightful	information,	deciphering	into	critical	business	
decisions	such	as	cross	sale,	up	sale,	identifying	product	trend,	market	segmentation,	emerging	opportunity	
etc.			

 Branding and Marketing: 

	 Last	 year	 Jetking	 implemented	 the	 re-branding	 at	 all	 the	 learning	 centres	 as	per	 the	new	brand	 identity.	
The	new	identity	drew	more	resonance	with	the	target	group	giving	a	better	brand	recall.	It	also	helped	in	
penetrating	 into	 new	 segment	with	more	 vigor	 as	 post	 branding	 exercise	 enquiry	 from	 engineering	 and	
graduate	segment	rose	opening	new	trajectory	for	the	organization.	With	the	new	identity,	Jetking	is	seen	as	
a	brand	that	helps	the	students	gain	the	right	skills	and	make	them	employable,	to	lead	a	better	life.

	 During	previous	financial	year	Jetking	reintroduced	the	television	campaign	with	advertisements	on	leading	
channels	like	Sab	TV,	Aaj	Tak,	Headlines	Today,	Discovery	Channel	and	other	leading	channels.	Television	
enables	to	reach	the	maximum	number	of	prospects	with	a	common	communication	creating	an	emotive	
response.	Given	the	reach	and	presence	of	Jetking	across	the	country,	television	proves	to	be	a	cost	effective	
medium	to	communicate	with	the	targeted	segment.	Brands	advertised	on	television	have	a	higher	perceived	
value.	Jetking	also	carried	out	various	print	campaigns	across	the	country	for	student	acquisition	in	Gujarat,	
Maharashtra	and	Mumbai	for	new	franchise	development.

	 The	new	brand	identity	coupled	with	aggressive	presence	through	various	communication	medium	will	brings	
in	more	vitality	and	strength	to	the	Jetking	brand.	Jetking	efforts	on	digital	media	are	hitting	records	with	
corporate	website	getting	over	6	lakh	visitors	during	the	previous	financial	year.	Digital	marketing	has	opened	
new	avenues	for	lead	generation	wherein	the	company	exploited	various	digital	properties	including	search	
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engine	marketing,	 facebook,	youtube	and	online	affiliate	network	creating	substantial	buzz	on	cyberspace	
about	Jetking.			

II. Product Wise Performance

 Jetking Certified Hardware and Networking Programs:

	 It	 was	 for	 the	 first	 time	 that	 a	 15	months	 long	 career	 program	 JCHNP	 (Jetking	 Certified	 Hardware	 and	
Networking	Professional)	exceeded	JCHNE	(Jetking	Certified	Hardware	and	Networking	Engineer)	program	
in	terms	of	enrollment.	While	JCHNE	contributed	30%	of	total	enrollment,	JCHNP	inched	higher	by	enrolling	
31%	of	the	enrollments.	JCHNP	exceeding	JCHNE	(12	months	career	program)	indicates	higher	student’s	
interest	towards	advance	and	high-end	modules.	This	also	helped	in	strengthening	the	order	book	which	will	
get	reflected	over	a	period	of	time.			

 Masters in Network Administrator (MNA):

	 The	drive	to	tap	the	large	engineering	segment	by	introducing	specialized	programs	targeted	towards	them	
reaped	rich	dividend	for	the	organization	during	the	year.	The	product	created	a	lot	of	buzz	among	technical	
students	and	contributed	almost	10%	of	total	enrollments.	Going	ahead	the	segment	is	expected	to	expand	
its	share	in	product	pie	and	contribute	significantly	in	enrollments.			

 Modular Programs:

	 Targeted	as	an	up-skilling	course	with	advance	course	offerings	to	technical	and	working	professionals,	we	
trained	close	to	25%	of	students	in	short	term	modular	programs	during	the	year.

III. Internal Control System and their adequacy

	 The	Company	has	adopted	world-class	practices	for	internal	controls,	based	on	its	extensive	global	operational	
experience.	It	has	also	implemented	one	of	the	leading	ERP	solutions	in	its	global	operations,	to	integrate	
various	facets	of	business	operations,	including	Human	Resource,	Finance,	Logistics,	and	Sales.	This	has	
enabled	the	Company	to	control	and	monitor	its	worldwide	operations	online	and	strengthen	the	ability	of	
internal	controls	to	function	most	optimally.

	 The	Company’s	 internal	 control	 systems	 are	 commensurate	with	 the	 nature	 of	 its	 business	 and	 the	 size	
and	complexity	of	its	operations.	These	are	regularly	reviewed	and	certified	by	Statutory	as	well	as	Internal	
Auditors	 during	 the	 year	 and	 it	 covers	 all	 key	 business	 areas.	 Significant	 audit	 observations	 along	with	
auditee’s	response	and	implementation	action	plan	thereon	are	reported	to	the	Audit	Committee.	The	Audit	
Committee	reviews	the	adequacy	and	effectiveness	of	the	Company’s	internal	control	system	and	monitors	
the	implementation	of	audit	recommendations,	including	those	relating	to	strengthening	of	the	Company’s	
risk	management	policies	and	systems.

IV. Financial Performance

	 During	the	Financial	Year	under	review,	the	Company	earned	the	Total	Income	of	`	3136.88	Lakhs	as	against	
`	3594.16	Lakhs	in	the	previous	year	and	the	Net	Profit	after	Tax	of	̀ 	260.95	Lakhs	as	against	̀  316.00 Lakhs 
in	the	previous	year,	resulting	in	decrease	by	17.42%	and	20.77%,	respectively.

V. Human Resources

	 In	the	FY	year	2013-14,	the	HR	team	at	Jetking	took	an	ambitious	project	of	evaluating	centre	manpower	
across	 franchisee	 location.	 To	 ensure	 quality	 and	 effective	manpower	 at	 the	 centre,	 the	 objective	 of	 the	
drive	was	to	train	and	streamline	the	staff	at	the	franchisee	centre.	Through	the	project	“Ustad”,	the	team	
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conducted	proficiency	assessment	and	training	need	analysis	of	the	centre	staff.		This	activity	helped	us	in	
identifying	skill	gaps	at	the	individual	centre	and	organizing	training	for	improving	individual	performance.	
To	make	the	training	more	interactive	and	simpler	for	Jetking	staff,	an	in-house	online	based	training	capsule	
“Jetking	Online	University”	covering	entire	centre	processes	was	also	launched	during	the	year.

Disclaimer

Statements in this management discussion and analysis describing the Company’s views about the industry, 
objectives, projections, estimates and expectations may be ‘forward looking statements’ within the meaning of 
applicable laws and regulations. The Company undertakes no obligations to publicly update or revise any forward-
looking statements, whether as a result of new information, future events, or otherwise. Actual results, performances 
or achievements could differ materially from those expressed or implied in such statements. Readers are cautioned 
as not to place undue reliance on the forward-looking statements as they speak only as of their dates. The MD&A 
should be read in conjunction with the Company’s financial statements included herein and the notes thereto. 
Information provided in this MD&A pertains to Jetking Infotrain Limited unless otherwise stated.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To
The Members of
JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED

Report on the Financial Statements
We	have	audited	the	accompanying	financial	statements	of	JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED (“the	Company”),	which	
comprise	the	balance	sheet	as	at	March	31,	2014	and	statement	of	profit	and	loss	and	cash	flow	statement	for	the	
year	then	ended,	and	a	summary	of	significant	accounting	policies	and	other	explanatory	information.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management	 is	 responsible	 for	 the	 preparation	 of	 these	 financial	 statements	 that	 give	 a	 true	 and	 fair	 view	 of	
the	financial	position,	financial	performance	and	cash	flows	of	the	Company	in	accordance	with	the	Accounting	
Principles	generally	accepted	in	India	including	Accounting	Standards	referred	to	in	sub-section	(3C)	of	Section	
211	of	the	Companies	Act,	1956	(“the	Act”)	read	with	the	General	Circular	15/2013	dated	13	September	2013	of	
Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs	in	respect	of	Section	133	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.	This	responsibility	includes	
the	design,	implementation	and	maintenance	of	internal	controls	relevant	to	the	preparation	and	fair	presentation	
of	the	financial	statements	that	give	a	true	and	fair	view	and	are	free	from	material	misstatement,	whether	due	to	
fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our	responsibility	is	to	express	an	opinion	on	these	financial	statements	based	on	our	audit.	We	conducted	our	
audit	in	accordance	with	the	Standards	on	Auditing	issued	by	the	Institute	of	Chartered	Accountants	of	India.	Those	
Standards	require	that	we	comply	with	ethical	requirements	and	plan	and	perform	the	audit	to	obtain	reasonable	
assurance	about	whether	the	financial	statements	are	free	from	material	misstatement.
An	audit	involves	performing	procedures	to	obtain	audit	evidence	about	the	amounts	and	disclosures	in	the	financial	
statements.	The	procedures	selected	depend	on	the	auditor’s	judgment,	including	the	assessment	of	the	risks	of	
material	misstatement	of	the	financial	statements,	whether	due	to	fraud	or	error.	In	making	those	risk	assessments,	
the	auditor	considers	internal	control	relevant	to	the	Company’s	preparation	and	fair	presentation	of	the	financial	
statements	in	order	to	design	audit	procedures	that	are	appropriate	in	the	circumstances,	but	not	for	the	purpose	
of	 expressing	 an	opinion	on	 the	 effectiveness	of	 the	 entity’s	 internal	 control.	An	 audit	 also	 includes	 evaluating	
the	 appropriateness	 of	 accounting	 policies	 used	 and	 the	 reasonableness	 of	 the	 accounting	 estimates	made	 by	
management,	as	well	as	evaluating	the	overall	presentation	of	the	financial	statements.
We	believe	that	the	audit	evidence	we	have	obtained	is	sufficient	and	appropriate	to	provide	a	basis	for	our	audit	
opinion.

Opinion
In	our	opinion	and	 to	 the	best	of	our	 information	and	according	 to	 the	explanations	given	 to	us,	 the	aforesaid	
financial	statements	give	the	information	required	by	the	Act	in	the	manner	so	required	and	give	a	true	and	fair	view	
in	conformity	with	the	accounting	principles	generally	accepted	in	India:
(a)	 in	the	case	of	the	balance	sheet,	of	the	state	of	affairs	of	the	Company	as	at	March	31,	2014,	and
(b)	 in	the	case	of	the	statement	of	profit	and	loss,	of	the	profit	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date;	and
(c)	 In	the	case	of	the	cash	flow	statement,	of	the	cash	flows	of	the	Company	for	the	year	ended	on	that	date.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	 As	required	by	Companies	(Auditor’s	Report)	Order,	2003	(“the	Order”)	issued	by	the	Central	Government	

of	India	in	terms	of	sub-section	(4A)	of	Section	227	of	the	Act,	we	give	in	the	annexure	a	statement	on	the	
matters	specified	in	paragraphs	4	and	5	of	the	said	Order.
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2.	 As	required	by	Section	227(3)	of	the	Act,	we	report	that:

a.	 We	have	obtained	all	the	information	and	explanations	which	to	the	best	of	our	knowledge	and	belief	
were	necessary	for	the	purpose	of	our	audit;

b.	 In	our	opinion,	proper	books	of	account	as	required	by	law	have	been	kept	by	the	Company,	so	far	
as	appears	from	our	examination	of	those	books;

c.	 The	balance	sheet,	statement	of	profit	and	loss	and	cash	flow	statement	dealt	with	by	this	report	are	
in	agreement	with	the	books	of	account;

d.	 in	our	opinion,	the	balance	sheet,	statement	of	profit	and	loss	and	the	cash	flow	statement	comply	
with	the	Accounting	Standards	referred	to	in	sub-section	(3C)	of	Section	211	of	the	Act,	read	with	
the	General	Circular	15/2013	dated	13	September	2013	of	Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs	in	respect	of	
Section	133	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013;

e.	 On	the	basis	of	written	representations	received	from	the	directors	of	the	Company,	as	on	March	
31,	2014	and	 taken	on	 record	by	 the	Board	of	Directors,	we	 report	 that	none	of	 the	directors	 is	
disqualified	as	on	March	31,	2014	from	being	appointed	as	a	director	in	terms	of	clause	(g)	of	sub-
section	(1)	of	Section	274	of	the	Act.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered	Accountants
Firm	Registration	No-	121750W/	W-100010

(Ramesh Gupta)
PARTNER
Membership	No.:	102306

Mumbai
Dated:	May	26,	2014
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ANNEXURE TO INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading of “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory 
Requirements” of our report of even date)

1.	 (a)		 The	Company	has	maintained	proper	records	showing	full	particulars	including	quantitative	details	
and situation of its fixed assets.

	 (b)		 Fixed	assets	have	been	physically	verified	by	the	management	according	to	the	regular	programme	
of	periodical	verification	in	a	phased	manner,	which	in	our	opinion	is	reasonable	having	regard	to	the	
size	of	the	Company	and	the	nature	of	its	fixed	assets.	The	discrepancies	noticed	on	such	physical	
verification	were	not	material	and	the	same	have	been	properly	dealt	with	in	the	books	of	account.

	 (c)		 During	the	year,	the	Company	has	not	disposed	off	substantial	part	of	the	fixed	assets.
2.	 (a)		 As	explained	to	us,	the	inventories	of	courseware	and	other	materials	have	been	physically	verified	

by	the	management	at	reasonable	intervals	during	the	year.
	 (b)		 In	our	opinion,	the	procedures	of	physical	verification	of	inventories	followed	by	the	management	

are	reasonable	and	adequate	in	relation	to	the	size	of	the	Company	and	the	nature	of	its	business.
	 (c)		 On	the	basis	of	our	examination	of	the	inventory	records,	in	our	opinion,	the	Company	has	maintained	

proper	 records	 of	 inventory.	 The	 discrepancies	 noticed	 on	 physical	 verification	 of	 inventory	 as	
compared	 to	book	 records	were	not	material	 and	 the	 same	have	been	properly	dealt	with	 in	 the	
books	of	account.

3.	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Company	has	not	granted	/	taken	any	loans,	
secured	or	unsecured,	to	/	from	companies,	firms	and	other	parties	covered	in	the	Register	maintained	
under	Section	301	of	the	Act.	Accordingly,	the	provisions	of	clause	4(iii)(b),	4(iii)(c),	4(iii)(d),	4(iii)(f),	and	
4(iii)(g)	of	the	Order	are	not	applicable	to	the	Company.

4.		 In	our	opinion	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	there	is	an	adequate	internal	
control	system	commensurate	with	the	size	of	the	Company	and	the	nature	of	its	business,	with	regard	to	
purchase	of	inventory,	fixed	assets	and	for	the	sale	of	goods	and	services.	During	the	course	of	our	audit,	
we	have	not	observed	any	continuing	failure	to	correct	major	weaknesses	in	internal	control	system.

5.		 (a)	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	we	are	of	the	opinion	that	the	particulars	
of	 contracts	 or	 arrangements	 referred	 to	 in	 Section	 301	 of	 the	 Act	 that	 need	 to	 be	 entered	 into	
register	maintained	under	Section	301	of	the	Act	have	been	so	entered.

	 (b)	 In	 our	 opinion	 and	 according	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 the	 transactions	
exceeding	 value	 of	 five	 lakhs	 rupees	 in	 respect	 of	 any	 party	 have	 been	 entered	 into	 during	 the	
financial	year	at	prices	which	are	reasonable	having	regard	to	 the	prevailing	market	prices	at	 the	
relevant	time.

6.	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Company	has	not	accepted	any	deposits	
from	the	public	within	the	meaning	of	Sections	58A	and	58AA	of	the	Act	and	the	rules	framed	hereunder.

7.	 The	Company	has	adequate	internal	audit	system	commensurate	with	size	and	nature	of	its	business.
8.	 In	our	opinion	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Central	Government	has	

not	prescribed	maintenance	of	cost	records	under	Section	209(1)(d)	of	the	Act.
9.	 (a)		 The	Company	is	generally	regular	in	depositing	the	undisputed	statutory	dues	including	provident	

fund,	 investor	education	and	protection	funds,	employees’	state	 insurance,	 income	tax,	sales	tax,	
wealth	tax,	service	tax,	custom	duty,	excise	duty,	cess	and	other	material	statutory	dues	as	applicable	
with	the	appropriate	authorities.	No	undisputed	amounts	payable	in	respect	of	aforesaid	statutory	
outstanding	as	on	the	last	day	of	the	financial	year	for	a	period	of	more	than	six	months	from	the	
date	they	became	payable.
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	 (b)	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	there	are	no	dues	of	sales	tax,	income	
tax,	service	tax,	customs	duty,	wealth	tax,	excise	duty	and	cess,	which	have	not	been	deposited	on	
account	of	any	dispute	except	the	following	dues:

In respect of Amount
(`) Period to which the amount relates Forum where the dispute is 

pending

Franchisee	fee 58,303 1	February	2004	to	30	April	2004 Commissioner	of	Central	Excise	
(Appeals)

Royalty 647,852 1	February	2004	to	30	April	2004 Commissioner	of	Central	Excise	
(Appeals)

Franchisee	fee 60,172 1	May	2004	to	9	September	2004 Custom	Excise	&	Service	Tax	
Appellate	Tribunal

Royalty 1,056,913 1	May	2004	to	9	September	2004 Custom	Excise	&	Service	Tax	
Appellate	Tribunal

Franchisee	fee 39,648 10	September	2004	to	31	March	
2005

Custom	Excise	&	Service	Tax	
Appellate	Tribunal

Royalty 1,399,895 10	September	2004	to	31	March	
2005

Custom	Excise	&	Service	Tax	
Appellate	Tribunal

Franchisee	fee 24,863 1	April	2005	to	15	June	2005 Assistant	Commissioner	of	
Central	Excise

Royalty 739,749 1	April	2005	to	15	June	2005 Assistant	Commissioner	of	
Central	Excise

Income	Tax 400,940 AY	2009	-	2010 Assistant	Commissioner	of	
Income	Tax

Income	Tax 1,774,480 AY	2011	-	2012 Assistant	Commissioner	of	
Income	Tax

TDS 13,990 AY	2009	-	2010 Deputy	Commissioner	of	
Income	Tax	(TDS)

TDS 43,240 AY	2010	-	2011 Chief	Commissioner	of	Income	
tax

TDS 83,800 AY	2012	-	2013 Deputy	Commissioner	of	
Income	Tax	(TDS)

TDS 3,990 AY	2013	-	2014 Deputy	Commissioner	of	
Income	Tax	(TDS)

10.	 The	Company	has	no	accumulated	losses	at	the	end	of	the	financial	year	and	it	has	not	incurred	cash	losses	
in	the	current	year	or	in	the	immediately	preceding	financial	year.

11.	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Company	has	not	defaulted	in	repayment	of	
dues	to	the	banks.	The	Company	does	not	have	any	borrowings	from	financial	institutions	and	by	way	of	
debentures.

12.	 According	 to	 the	 information	 and	 explanations	 given	 to	 us,	 and	 in	 our	 opinion,	 the	 Company	 has	 not	
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granted	any	loans	and	advances	on	the	basis	of	security	by	way	of	pledge	of	shares,	debentures	and	other	
securities.

13.	 In	our	opinion,	the	Company	is	not	a	chit	fund	or	a	nidhi	/	mutual	benefit	fund	/	society.	Therefore,	the	
provisions	of	clause	4(xiii)	of	the	Order	are	not	applicable	to	the	Company.

14.	 In	our	opinion,	the	Company	is	not	dealing	or	trading	in	shares,	securities,	debentures	and	other	investments.	
Accordingly,	the	provisions	of	clause	4(xiv)	of	the	Order	are	not	applicable	to	the	Company.

15.	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	in	our	opinion,	the	Company	has	not	given	
any	guarantees	for	loans	taken	by	others	from	banks	or	financial	institutions.

16.	 Based	on	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us,	the	Company	has	not	obtained	term	loan	during	the	
year.	Accordingly,	the	provisions	of	clause	4(xvi)	of	the	Order	are	not	applicable	to	the	Company.

17.	 According	to	the	information	and	explanations	given	to	us	and	on	an	overall	examination	of	the	balance	
sheet	of	the	Company	and	cash	flow	statement,	we	report	that	the	funds	raised	on	short-term	basis,	have	
not	been	used	for	long-term	investment.

18.	 The	Company	has	not	made	any	preferential	allotment	of	shares	to	the	parties	or	companies	covered	in	the	
register	maintained	under	Section	301	of	the	Act	during	the	year.

19.	 The	Company	has	not	issued	any	debentures	during	the	year.
20.	 The	Company	has	not	raised	any	money	by	public	issue	during	the	year.
21.	 During	the	course	of	our	examination	of	the	books	and	records	of	the	Company,	carried	out	in	accordance	

with	the	generally	accepted	auditing	practices	in	India	and	according	to	the	information	and	explanations	
given	to	us,	we	have	neither	come	across	any	instances	of	fraud	on	or	by	the	Company,	noticed	or	reported	
during	the	year,	nor	have	we	been	informed	of	such	cases	by	the	management.

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP
Chartered	Accountants
Firm	Reg.	No.	121750W/	W-100010

(Ramesh Gupta)
PARTNER
Membership	No.	102306

Place: Mumbai

Dated:	May	26,	2014
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JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2014

 Particulars  Note 
No. 

 As at 
31 March 2014

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013

(`) 

I.  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

1  Shareholders' Funds 
	(a)		Share	capital	 2                58,982,500 												58,982,500	
	(b)		Reserves	and	surplus	 3              360,927,343            341,722,746 

             419,909,843            400,705,246 
2  Non-Current Liabilities 

	(a)		Deferred	tax	liability	(Net)	 4                15,150,000             14,015,636 
	(b)		Other	long-term	liabilities	 5                22,118,443             25,172,114 
	(c)		Long-term	provisions	 6                 1,259,372               1,166,573 

               38,527,815             40,354,323 
3  Current Liabilities 

	(a)		Trade	payables	 7                 7,069,498               8,011,242 
	(b)		Other	current	liabilities	 8                39,564,741 												37,379,012	
	(c)		Short-term	provisions	 9                15,119,743 												14,229,052	

               61,753,982 												59,619,306	
             520,191,640            500,678,875 

II.  ASSETS 

1  Non-Current Assets 
 (a)  Fixed assets 10
		 (i)		 Tangible	assets	              236,835,666 											220,643,902	
		 (ii)		 Intangible	assets	                10,333,162 														9,214,461	
		 (iii)		Intangible	assets	under	development	                 4,260,000 														4,190,000	

             251,428,828            234,048,363 
	(b)		Non-current	investments	 11              103,246,594 												98,337,981	
	(c)		Long	term	loans	and	advances	 12                47,755,099             42,883,176 
	(d)		Other	non-current	assets	 13                             –   																	901,689	

             402,430,521 											376,171,209	
2  Current Assets 

	(a)		Inventories	 14                 4,449,948 														5,829,620	
	(b)		Trade	receivables	 15                61,733,610             60,604,420 
	(c)		Cash	and	bank	balances	 16                43,431,567             42,561,276 
	(d)		Short-term	loans	and	advances	 17                 7,606,849             14,686,582 
	(e)		Other	current	assets	 18                    539,145                  825,768 

             117,761,119            124,507,666 
             520,191,640            500,678,875 

Significant accounting policies  1     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements    
As	per	our	report	of	even	date	attached	 	 	 	 	 	 	
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP	 	On	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors		
Chartered	Accountants	 	 	 	
      
Ramesh Gupta Suresh G Bharwani		 Chairman	&	Managing	Director
PARTNER Nandu G Bharwani		 Joint	Managing	Director				
Membership	No.	102306	 Deepali Koneri 		 Company	Secretary	 		
    
Place:	Mumbai	 Place:	Mumbai		
Dated:	26th	May	2014	 Dated:	26th	May	2014		
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Significant accounting policies  1     
The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements    
As	per	our	report	of	even	date	attached	 	 	 	 	 	 	
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP	 	On	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors		
Chartered	Accountants	 	 	 	
      
Ramesh Gupta Suresh G Bharwani		 Chairman	&	Managing	Director
PARTNER Nandu G Bharwani		 Joint	Managing	Director				
Membership	No.	102306	 Deepali Koneri 		 Company	Secretary	 		
    
Place:	Mumbai	 Place:	Mumbai		
Dated:	26th	May	2014	 Dated:	26th	May	2014		

JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED
STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Particulars Note
 No.

 Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

 Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

I Revenue from operations 19            288,456,880 								329,998,261	

II Other income 20             25,230,790 										29,417,498	

III Total Revenue (I + II)            313,687,670         359,415,759 

IV Expenses: 

Purchases	of	courseware	and	other	materials 21             14,434,233           24,313,772 
Changes	in	inventories	of	courseware	and	other	materials 22               1,379,672               386,146 
Employee	benefits	expense 23             93,662,305 								109,841,600	
Finance	costs 24                    94,840 														988,378	
Depreciation	and	amortisation	expense 10             17,488,456 										15,614,896	
Other	expenses 25            150,301,027 								165,828,809	

Total expenses            277,360,533         316,973,601 

V Profit before tax (III - IV)             36,327,137           42,442,158 

VI Tax expense: 
Current	tax            (10,193,000)            (7,500,000)
Deferred	tax              (1,134,364)            (3,341,804)
Prior	year	tax	adjustment               1,094,660                        –   

VII Profit for the year (V - VI)             26,094,433           31,600,354 

VIII Earnings per equity share:
(1) Basic                       4.43                     5.37 
(2) Diluted                       4.43                     5.37 
Nominal value of equity shares                          10                       10 
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JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014

Particulars
 Current Year

2013-2014
(`) 

 Previous Year
2012-2013

(`) 

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net profit/(loss) before tax            36,327,137 42,442,158 

Adjustments for: 

Depreciation	and	amortization	expense            17,488,456 15,614,896	

Exchange	rate	difference	(net)                   147,179 144,223 

Loss on sale of fixed assets (net)                  343,141 –   

Fixed assets written off                  944,611 20,941	

Interest	expense                  94,840 988,378	

Interest	income            (7,478,565) (3,698,432)

Dividend	income               (324,814) (1,503,763)

Bad	debts	written	off              5,332,441 6,542,894	

Provision	for	doubtful	debts	               5,163,813 578,856 

Excess	provision	of	earlier	years	written	back              (1,771,376) (615,104)

Loss	/	(Profit)	on	sale	of	investments               (295,013) (8,301,244)

Operating profit before working capital changes     55,971,850 52,213,803 

Adjustments for:

(Increase)/decrease	in	inventories	              1,379,672 386,146 

(Increase)/decrease	in	trade	and	other	receivables	           (5,589,842) 4,582,943	

Increase/(Decrease)	in	trade	and	other	payables	               1,564,553 (24,557,872)

Cash generated from operations   53,326,233 32,625,020 

Taxes	paid	             (11,151,810) (17,167,694)

Net cash generated from operating activities  (A)    42,174,423 15,457,326 

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Payment	for	purchase	of	fixed	assets	including	intangible	
assets	underdevlopment	and	capital	advances	          (38,180,140) (19,862,378)

	Proceeds	from	sale	of	fixed	assets	                247,666 488,702 

	Payment	for	purchase	of	investments	          (61,465,925) (440,283,102)

	Proceeds	from	sale	of	investments	           56,852,287 491,512,895	
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Particulars
 Current Year

2013-2014
(`) 

 Previous Year
2012-2013

(`) 
Investments	in	bank	deposits	having	original	maturity	of	more	
than three months but less than 12 months            (6,816,901) (17,447,483)

Investments	in	bank	deposits	having	original	maturity	of	more	
than	twelve	months		                            –   (901,689)

	Interest	received	               7,765,188 3,902,452	

	Dividend	received	                 324,814 1,617,629	

Net cash generated from / (used in) investing activities  (B)   (41,273,011) 19,027,026 

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase	/	(decrease)	in	short	term	borrowings		(net)                            –   (23,059,784)

Dividend	paid	including	dividend	distribution	tax             (7,654,871) (10,276,377)

Interest	paid	                (94,840) (1,203,362)

Net cash (used in) / generated from financing activities  (C)     (7,749,711) (34,539,523)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents 
(A+B+C)   (6,848,299) (55,171)

Cash and cash equivalent at beginning of year    18,223,793 18,281,036 

Cash and cash equivalent at end of year     11,375,494 18,223,793 

Exchange	difference	loss                 –   2,072 

Net increase/(decrease) as disclosed above   (6,848,299) (55,171)

Note: 
a)		 The	above	Cash	Flow	Statement	has	been	prepared	under	the	“Indirect	Method”	as	set	out	in	the	Accounting	Standard	

(AS)	-	3	on	“Cash	Flow	Statements”	as	notified	by	Central	Government	of	India.		
b)		 Figures	for	the	corresponding	previous	year	are	re-arranged,	wherever	considered	necessary,	to	conform	to	the	figures	of	

the	current	year.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements    
As	per	our	report	of	even	date	attached	 	 	 	 	 	

FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP	 On	behalf	of	the	Board	of	Directors		
Chartered	Accountants	 	 	 	
      
Ramesh Gupta Suresh G Bharwani		 Chairman	and	Managing	Director
PARTNER Nandu G. Bharwani		 Joint	Managing	Director				
Membership	No.	102306	 Deepali Koneri Company	Secretary  
    
Place: Mumbai Place: Mumbai  
Dated:	26th	May	2014	 Dated:	26th	May	2014		
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
1. Significant accounting policies

a) Accounting convention:
	 The	 financial	 statements	 have	 been	 prepared	 in	 compliance	 with	 all	 material	 aspects	 of	 the	

Accounting	Standards	prescribed	 in	 the	Companies	 (Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	2006	notified	
by	the	Central	Government,	to	the	extent	applicable	and	in	accordance	with	the	relevant	provisions	
of	 the	Companies	Act,	1956	read	with	the	General	Circular	15/2013	dated	13	September	2013	of	
Ministry	of	Corporate	Affairs	in	respect	of	Section	133	of	the	Companies	Act,	2013.

	 The	 financial	 statements	 are	 prepared	 on	 the	 basis	 of	 historical	 cost	 convention,	 and	 on	 the	
accounting	principle	of	a	going	concern.

	 The	Company	follows	mercantile	system	of	accounting	and	recognizes	income	and	expenditure	on	
accrual	basis	except	those	with	significant	uncertainties.

b) Use of estimates:
	 The	preparation	of	financial	statements	in	conformity	with	generally	accepted	accounting	principles	

(GAAP)	requires	management	to	make	estimates	and	assumptions	that	affects	the	reported	amounts	
of	assets	and	liabilities	and	the	disclosures	of	contingent	liabilities	on	the	date	of	financial	statements	
and	reported	amounts	of	revenue	and	expenses	for	that	year.	Although	these	estimates	are	based	
upon	management’s	best	knowledge	of	current	events	and	actions,	actual	results	could	differ	from	
these estimates.

c) Fixed assets:
i.	 Fixed	assets	 including	 intangible	 assets	 are	 stated	at	 cost	 less	 accumulated	depreciation	 /	

amortisation.	Cost	includes	all	cost	incidental	to	acquisition,	in	stallation,	commissioning,	pre-
operative	expenses	allocated	to	such	assets.

ii.	 Intangible	assets	are	recognized	only	if	it	is	probable	that	the	future	economic	benefits	that	are	
attributable	to	the	asset	will	flow	to	the	enterprise	and	the	cost	of	the	asset	can	be	measured	
reliably.	 The	 capitalised	 cost	 includes	 license	 fees	 and	 cost	 of	 implementation	 /	 system	
integration	services.

  d) Inventories:
	 Inventories	are	valued	at	lower	of	cost	or	net	realizable	value.	Cost	of	inventories	comprises	of	all	

cost	of	purchases	and	other	costs	incurred	in	bringing	the	inventory	to	their	present	location	and	
condition.	Cost	is	assigned	on	First-In-First-Out	(FIFO)	basis.	Obsolete,	defective	and	unserviceable	
stocks	are	provided	for,	wherever	required.

  e) Investments:
	 Long	 term	 investments	are	valued	at	cost	 less	provision,	 if	any	 for	diminution	 in	value,	which	 is	

other	than	temporary.	Current	investments	are	carried	at	the	lower	of	the	cost	and	fair	value.
  f) Accounting for taxes on income:

i.	 Provision	 for	 income	 tax	 is	 made	 on	 the	 basis	 of	 the	 estimated	 taxable	 income	 for	 the	
accounting	year	in	accordance	with	the	Income-tax	Act,	1961.

ii.	 The	deferred	tax	for	timing	differences	between	the	book	profits	and	tax	profits	for	the	year	is	
accounted	for	using	the	tax	rates	and	laws	that	have	been	enacted	or	substantively	enacted	as	
of	the	balance	sheet	date.	Deferred	tax	assets	arising	from	timing	differences	are	recognized	
to	the	extent	there	is	a	virtual	certainty	that	these	would	be	realized	in	future	and	are	reviewed	
for	the	appropriateness	of	their	respective	carrying	values	at	each	balance	sheet	date.

iii.	 The	Minimum	Alternative	Tax	(MAT)	credit	 is	recognized	as	an	asset	only	when	and	to	the	
extent	there	is	convincing	evidence	that	the	Company	will	pay	normal	income	tax	during	the	
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
specified	period.	 In	 the	 year	 in	which	 the	Minimum	Alternative	Tax	 (MAT)	 credit	 becomes	
eligible	 to	 be	 recognized	 as	 an	 asset	 in	 accordance	 with	 the	 recommendations	 contained	
in	 guidance	 note	 issued	by	 the	 Institute	 of	 Chartered	Accountants	 of	 India,	 the	 said	 asset	
is	created	by	way	of	a	credit	 to	 the	statement	of	profit	and	 loss	and	shown	as	MAT	Credit	
Entitlement.	 The	 Company	 reviews	 the	 same	 at	 each	 balance	 sheet	 date	 and	writes	 down	
the	carrying	amount	of	MAT	Credit	Entitlement	 to	 the	extent	 there	 is	no	 longer	convincing	
evidence	 to	 the	 effect	 that	 the	 Company	 will	 pay	 normal	 income	 tax	 during	 the	 specified	
period.

  g) Depreciation and amortization:
	 i.	 Tangible	assets:

	 Depreciation	 on	 fixed	 assets	 (Tangible	 assets)	 is	 provided	 on	 the	 straight-line	method	 at	
the	 rates	 and	 in	 the	manner	 prescribed	 under	 Schedule	 XIV	 of	 the	 Act	 except	 in	 case	 of	
furniture	and	fixtures	and	computers	where	higher	rate	of	depreciation	i.e.	19%	and	31.67%,	
respectively	has	been	provided	 for.	Depreciation	on	additions	 /	deletions	 to	 fixed	assets	 is	
calculated	pro-rata	from/up	to	the	date	of	such	additions/deletion.

	 Leasehold	improvements	are	amortized	on	the	straight-line	method	over	the	term	of	related	
lease	including	extensions	which	are	reasonably	expected	to	occur	and	useful	lives	of	such	
improvements	is	taken	as	thirty	six	months.

	 ii.	 Intangible	assets:
	 Computer	software	(Intangible	assets)	is	amortized	on	the	straight-line	method	over	a	period	

of	thirty	six	months.
	 Content	 development	 &	 digitization	 and	 Brand	 development	 is	 amortized	 on	 straight	 line	

method	over	a	period	of	thirty	six	month.
iii.	 Assets	individually	costing	Rs	5,000	or	less	are	fully	depreciated	in	the	year	of	purchase.

  h) Transaction in foreign currencies:
	 Foreign	 currency	 transactions	 are	 recorded	at	 the	 exchange	 rates	prevailing	on	 the	date	of	 such	

transactions.	Monetary	assets	and	liabilities	as	at	the	Balance	Sheet	date	are	translated	at	the	rates	
of	 exchange	prevailing	 at	 the	date	of	 the	Balance	Sheet.	Gains	 and	 losses	 arising	on	 account	of	
differences	in	foreign	exchange	rates	on	settlement/translation	of	monetary	assets	and	liabilities	are	
recognized	in	the	Statement	of	profit	and	loss.	Non-monetary	foreign	currency	items	are	carried	at	
cost.

  i) Employee benefits:
i.	 Defined	contribution	plans
	 The	 Company	 contributes	 on	 a	 defined	 contribution	 basis	 to	 Employee’s	 Provident	 Fund,	

towards	 post	 employment	 benefits,	 which	 is	 administered	 by	 the	 respective	 Government	
authorities,	and	has	no	further	obligation	beyond	making	its	contribution,	which	is	expensed	
in	the	year	to	which	it	pertains.

ii.	 Defined	benefit	plans
	 The	Company	has	a	Defined	benefit	plan	namely	Gratuity	for	all	its	employees.	The	liability	for	

the	defined	benefit	plan	of	Gratuity	is	determined	on	the	basis	of	an	actuarial	valuation	by	an	
independent	actuary	at	the	year	end,	which	is	calculated	using	projected	unit	credit	method.

	 Actuarial	gains	and	losses	are	recognized	immediately	in	the	Statement	of	profit	and	loss.	The	
fair	value	of	the	plan	assets	is	reduced	from	the	gross	obligation	under	the	defined	plan,	to	
recognize	the	obligation	on	net	basis.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
iii.	 Employee	leave	entitlement
	 The	employees	of	the	Company	are	entitled	to	leave	as	per	the	leave	policy	of	the	Company.	

The	liability	in	respect	of	unutilized	leave	balances	is	provided	based	on	an	actuarial	valuation	
carried	out	by	an	independent	actuary	as	at	the	year	end	which	is	calculated	using	projected	
unit	credit	method	and	charged	to	the	Statement	of	profit	and	loss.

  j) Revenue recognition:
i.	 Revenue	in	respect	of	training	services	is	recognized	on	rendering	of	services,	only	when	it	

is	reasonably	certain	that	the	ultimate	collection	will	be	made.	The	revenue	from	fixed	time	
contract	is	recognized	over	the	period	of	contracts.	For	services	rendered	through	franchisees,	
only	the	Company’s	share	of	revenue	is	recognized	as	per	the	terms	of	the	contract.	For	the	
Centers	owned	by	 the	Company,	 the	 income	 is	 recognized	over	 the	period	of	provision	of	
services	to	the	students.

ii.	 Revenue	in	respect	of	sale	of	courseware	and	other	materials	is	recognised	on	delivery	of	the	
courseware	and	other	materials	to	the	franchisees.

iii.	 Dividends	and	Interest	income	are	accounted	for	when	the	right	to	receive	dividend/interest	is	
established.

  k) Provisions and contingent liabilities:
	 The	Company	creates	a	provision	when	there	is	a	present	obligation	as	a	result	of	a	past	event	that	

probably	requires	an	outflow	of	resources	and	a	reliable	estimate	can	be	made	of	the	amount	of	the	
obligation.	A	disclosure	for	a	contingent	 liability	 is	made	when	there	 is	a	possible	obligation	or	a	
present	obligation	that	may,	but	probably	will	not,	require	an	outflow	of	resources.	Where	there	is	a	
possible	obligation	or	a	present	obligation	in	respect	of	which	the	likelihood	of	outflow	of	resources	
is	remote,	no	provision	or	disclosure	is	made.

  I) Lease:
	 Leases	where	the	lessor	effectively	retains	substantially	all	the	risks	and	benefits	of	ownership	of	

the	leased	term,	are	classified	as	operating	lease.	Operating	lease	payments	are	recognized	as	an	
expense	in	the	Statement	of	profit	and	loss	on	a	straight-line	basis	over	the	lease	term.

  m) Impairment of assets:
	 The	Company	assesses	 at	 each	balance	 sheet	date	whether	 there	 is	 any	 indication	 that	 an	 asset	

may	be	impaired.	If	any	such	indication	exists,	the	management	estimates	the	recoverable	amount	
of	the	asset.	If	such	recoverable	amount	of	the	asset	is	less	than	its	carrying	amount,	the	carrying	
amount	is	reduced	to	its	recoverable	amount.	The	reduction	is	treated	as	an	impairment	loss	and	is	
recognized	in	the	Statement	of	profit	and	loss.	If	at	the	balance	sheet	date	there	is	an	indication	that	
if	a	previously	assessed	 impairment	 loss	no	 longer	exists,	 the	recoverable	amount	 is	 reassessed	
and	the	asset	is	reflected	at	the	recoverable	amount	subject	to	a	maximum	of	depreciated	historical	
cost.

  n) Earnings per share
	 The	 basic	 earnings	 per	 share	 (“EPS”)	 is	 computed	 by	 dividing	 the	 net	 profit/(loss)	 after	 tax	 for	

the	 year	 available	 for	 the	 equity	 shareholders	 by	 the	weighted	 average	 number	 of	 equity	 shares	
outstanding	during	the	year.	For	the	purpose	of	calculating	diluted	earnings	per	share,	net	profit/
(loss)	 after	 tax	 for	 the	 year	 available	 for	 equity	 shareholders	 and	 the	weighted	 average	number	of	
shares	outstanding	during	the	year	are	adjusted	for	the	effects	of	all	dilutive	potential	equity	shares.

  o) Cash and Cash Equivalents
	 Cash	and	Cash	Equivalents	for	the	purpose	of	cash	flow	statement	comprise	cash	on	hand	and	cash	

at	bank	 including	fixed	deposit	with	original	maturity	period	of	 less	 than	three	months	and	short	
term	highly	liquid	investments	with	an	original	maturity	of	three	months	or	less.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
2 SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Authorized
10,000,000	Equity	shares	of	`	10	each	  100,000,000 100,000,000 

 100,000,000 100,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up
5,889,000	equity	shares	of	`	10	each,	fully	paid	up	    58,890,000 58,890,000	
Add: Forfeited shares
18,500	Equity	shares	of	` 10	each,	partly	paid	up	to	the	extent	of	`	5	per	share           92,500 92,500	

   58,982,500 58,982,500	

a) Details of reconciliation of the number of equity shares outstanding:

Particulars As at 31/03/2014 As at 31/03/2013

Number `  Number  `  

Shares	outstanding	at	the	beginning	of	the	year	 5,889,000 58,890,000 5,889,000	 58,890,000	

Add:	Shares	issued	during	the	year	               –              – –   –   

Shares	outstanding	at	the	end	of	the	year 5,889,000 58,890,000 5,889,000	 58,890,000	

b) Terms / rights attached to Equity shares

	 The	Company	has	only	one	class	of	equity	shares	having	a	par	value	of	`10	per	share.	Each	holder	of	equity	shares	is	
entitled	to	one	vote	per	share.	The	Company	declares	and	pays	dividend	in	Indian	rupees.	The	dividend	proposed	by	
the	Board	of	Directors	is	subject	to	the	approval	of	the	shareholders	in	the	ensuing	Annual	General	Meeting.

	 During	 the	 year	 ended	 31	 March	 2014,	 the	 amount	 of	 per	 share	 dividend	 recognised	 as	 distributions	 to	 equity	
shareholders	is	Re.	1	;	(Previous	year	Re.1).

	 In	the	event	of	the	liquidation	of	the	Company,	the	holder	of	equity	shares	will	be	entitled	to	receive	remaining	assets	
of	the	Company,	after	distribution	of	all	preferential	amounts.	The	distribution	will	be	in	proportion	to	the	number	of	
equity	shares	held	by	the	shareholders.

c) Aggregate bonus share issued during the period of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

Particulars As at 
31/03/2014

As at 
31/03/2013

Number `  Number  `  

Equity	shares	allotted	as	fully	paid	bonus	
shares	by	capitalisation	of	general	reserves		 1,963,000 19,630,000 3,926,000	 39,260,000	
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
d) Details of shares in the Company held by each shareholder holding more than 5 percent shares:

Name of the shareholder As at 31/03/2014 As at 31/03/2013

No. of Shares 
held  % of Holding   No. of Shares 

held  % of  Holding  

Mr.Dilip	Bharwani   811,200 13.78 811,200 13.78 
M/s.	Suresh	G.	Bharwani	(HUF)   531,000 9.02	 531,000 9.02	
Mr.Jitu	Gordhandas	Bharwani   465,000 7.90	 465,000 7.90	
M/s.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani	(HUF)   462,090 7.85 462,090	 7.85 
Mr.	Dipak	Kanayalal	Shah   321,000 5.45 308,450 5.24 

3 RESERVES AND SURPLUS

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2014 
(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

General reserve
Balance	as	per	last	financial	statements  115,561,106 115,561,106 
Add:	Amount	transferred	from	the	surplus	balance	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss                   –   –   
Closing Balance A  115,561,106 115,561,106 

Surplus in the statement of profit and loss
Balance	as	per	last	financial	statements  226,161,640 201,405,629	
Add:	Profit	for	the	year    26,094,433 31,600,354 
Less:	Appropriations:
		 -	Proposed	final	dividend	(Amount	per	share	Re.1	;	Previous	year	Re.1)    (5,889,000) (5,889,000)
		 -	Tax	on	proposed	final	dividend    (1,000,836) (955,343)
Net	surplus	in	statement	of	profit	and	loss	 B  245,366,237 226,161,640 
  Total (A + B)  360,927,343 341,722,746 

4 DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (NET)

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2014 
(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Deferred tax liabilities:
Timing	difference	arising	on	account	of:	
			 -	Depreciation    21,388,275 18,273,711 
Total (a)    21,388,275 18,273,711 

Less: Deferred tax assets:
Timing	difference	arising	on	account	of:	
			 -	Statutory	payments	under	Section	43B	of	the	Income-tax	Act,	1961      1,306,688 1,306,688 
			 -	Provision	for	doubtful	debts      1,863,209 187,810 
			 -	Provision	for	retirement	benefits      3,068,378 2,763,577 

Total (b)      6,238,275 4,258,075 
Net deferred tax liabilities (a-b)    15,150,000 14,015,636 
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5 OTHER LONG TERM LIABILITIES

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2014 
(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Income	received	in	advance      2,560,864 3,472,710 

Statutory	dues    16,758,179 16,758,179	

Security	deposits      2,799,400 4,941,225	

   22,118,443 25,172,114 

6 LONG TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars
 As at 

31 March 2014 
(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Provision for employee benefits

Provision	for	leave	benefits	(refer	note	no.	29)      1,259,372 1,166,573 

     1,259,372 1,166,573 

7 TRADE PAYABLES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Total	outstanding	dues	of	micro	enterprises	and	small	enterprises                       –   –   

Total	outstanding	dues	of	creditors	other	than	micro	enterprises	and	small	enterprises      7,069,498 8,011,242 

     7,069,498 8,011,242 

 The	Company	is	in	the	process	of	compiling	relevant	information	from	its	suppliers	about	their	coverage	under	the	
Micro,	Small	and	Medium	Enterprises	Development	Act,	2006.		As	the	Company	has	not	received	any	intimation	from	
its	suppliers	as	on	date	regarding	their	status	under	the	above	said	Act,	no	disclosure	has	been	made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
8 OTHER CURRENT LIABILITIES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Income	received	in	advance    19,608,064 17,366,013 

Creditors	for	fixed	assets      2,205,088 –   

Unpaid	dividend	*      3,720,971 4,531,499	

Statutory	dues      4,607,772 3,458,804 

Security	deposits      4,316,162 4,133,939	

Employees'	dues      5,106,684 7,888,757 

   39,564,741 37,379,012	

 *	There	are	no	amount	due	for	payment	to	the	Investor	Protection	Fund	under	Section	205C	of	the	Companies	Act,	
1956	as	at	the	year	end.

9 SHORT TERM PROVISIONS

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Provision for employee benefits

Provision	for	gratuity	(funded)	(refer	note	no.	29)      7,658,065 6,851,159	
Provision	for	leave	benefits	(unfunded)	(refer	note	no.	29)         539,731 499,960	
Other Provisions
Provision	for	wealth	tax           32,111 33,590	
Provision	for	proposed	divided      5,889,000 5,889,000	
Provision	for	tax	on	proposed	dividend      1,000,836 955,343	

   15,119,743 14,229,052	
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2014
11 NON CURRENT INVESTMENTS

Particulars 
 As at 

31 March 2014 
(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Non-trade investments (valued at cost unless stated otherwise) 

Investment in Subusidiary 

10,000	(previous	year	Nil)	shares	of	Jetking	Skill	Devlopment	Pvt.	Ltd.	of	`	10	each,	
fully	paidup	            100,000 – 

Total (a)            100,000                 – 

Investments in cumulative non convertible compulsory redeemable preference 
shares   

150,000	(previous	year	Nil)	shares	of	21.06%	IL&FS	Transportation	of	`	10	each	at	a	
premium	of	`	10	each,	fully	paid	up,	redeemable	on	23.07.2017	at	premium	 3,037,215 – 

 Total (b) 3,037,215                 – 

 Investments in debentures (unquoted) 

50	(previous	year	50)	Redeemable	non-convertible	debentures	in	ECL	Finance	
Limited, F.V. of `	100,000	each,	redeemable	on	21.05.2014	 5,165,450 5,165,450 

4	(previous	year	4)	Redeemable	non-convertible	debentures	in	Almond	Infrabuild	Pvt.	
Ltd, F.V. of `	5,000,000	each,	redeemable	on	21.03.2016	       20,224,720       20,224,720 

Total (c) 25,390,170 							25,390,170	

Investments in bonds (unquoted) 

Nil	(previous	year	260)	6.85%	IIFCL	Bonds	Tax	Free,	F.V.	of	`	100,000	each	                       –        26,617,500 

Nil	(previous	year	25)	10.75%	DPSC	Bonds,	F.V.	of	`	200,000	each	                       – 									5,139,000	

Nil	(previous	year	7)	9.40%	RRVP	Nigam	Ltd.	Bonds,	F.V.	of	`	10,00,000	each	                       –         7,000,000 

Total (d)                       –        38,756,500 
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Investments in mutual funds (unquoted) 
(Units	of	the	face	value	of	`10	each,	except	otherwise	stated)	

369,508.1846	(previous	year	Nil)	Units	in	JPMorgan	India	Active	Bond	Fund	Retail	
Growth	         5,000,000 – 

323,463.387	(previous	year	Nil)	Units	in		SBI	Dynamic	Bond	Fund	-	Regular	Plan	-	
Growth	         5,000,000 – 

	89,183.79	(previous	year	Nil)	Units	in	Birla	Sunlife	Income	Plus	Growth	Regular	Plan	         5,000,000 – 

	Nil	(previous	year	328,041.61)	Units	in	HDFC	Cash	Management	Fund	Treasury	
Advantage-Retail	Weekly	Dividend		                       – 								3,292,526	

336,713.941	(previous	year	Nil)	Units	in	SBI	Magnum	Income	Fund	-	Regular	Plan	-	
Growth	       10,000,000 – 

172,634.05	(previous	year	Nil)	Units	in	IDFC	Super	Saver	Income	Fund	Investment	
Plan	Growth	(Regular	Plan)	         5,000,000 – 

1,000,000	(previous	year	1,000,000)	Units	in	Reliance	Alternative	Investment	Fund	
Private	Equity	Scheme	I	       10,220,600       10,220,600 

382,015.719	(previous	year	Nil)	Units	in	DSP	BlackRock	Income	Opportunities	Fund-
Regular	Plan-Growth	         7,500,000 – 

259,039.93	(previous	year	Nil)	units	ICICI	Prudential	Income	Regular	Plan	Growth	       10,000,000 – 

Nil	(previous	year	5,584.39)	units	ICICI	Prudential	Flexible	Income	Plan		-	Regular	
Weekly	Dividend	                       – 561,059	

Nil	(previous	year	9,140.01)	units	Templeton	India	Short	Term	Income	Plan	-	
Quarterly	Dividend	Payout	                       –       10,000,000 

375,253.296	(previous	year	Nil)	units	Birla	Sunlife	Short	Term	Opportunities	Fund	-	
Growth	Regular	Plan	         7,500,000 – 

IDFC	Real	Estate	Yield	Fund,	FV	of	` 1,000	each	 1,500,000 – 

Nil	(previous	year	76,126.90)	units	ICICI	Dynamic	Plan	                       – 1,516,545 

3,000	(previous	year	3,000)	units	of	Kotak	Gold	ETF,	FV	of	`	100	each	         7,998,609 								7,998,609	

	Nil	(previous	year	601.727)	units	of	Morgan	Stanley	Liquid	Fund	                       – 601,972	

 Total (e) 74,719,209 34,191,311	

 Total (a+b+c+d+e) 103,246,594 							98,337,981	

	-	Aggregate	value	of	unquoted	investments	 103,246,594	 							98,337,981	

	-	Aggregate	repurchase	value	of	Units	in	mutual	funds		 62,792,021	 							35,138,649	
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12 LONG TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Unsecured	,	considered	good
Advances	recoverable	in	cash	or	in	kind	or	for	value	to	be	received      2,206,863 2,566,816 
Capital	advances      7,640,662 5,864,861 
Balances	with	excise	authorities    12,730,783 12,730,783 
Security	deposits    10,827,399 9,423,315	
Taxes	paid	and	refund	receivable    14,349,392 12,297,401	

(net	of	provision	for	income	tax	and	fringe	benefit	tax	of	`	170,493,156;	Previous	year	
`162,594,816)

   47,755,099 42,883,176 

13 OTHER NON CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Other	Bank	balances
					Bank	deposits	with	original	maturity	of	more	than	12	months	 –   901,689	

                  –   901,689	

14 INVENTORIES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

(Valued	at	cost	or	net	realisable	value	whichever	is	lower)
Courseware	and	other	materials	      4,449,948 5,829,620	

     4,449,948 5,829,620	

15 TRADE RECEIVABLES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Unsecured

Outstanding	for	a	period	exceeding	six	months	from	the	date	they	are	due	for	payment

					Considered	good    18,246,897 17,346,327 
					Considered	doubtful      5,742,669 578,856 
					Less:	Provision	for	doubtful	debts    (5,742,669) (578,856)

   18,246,897 17,346,327 
Other	receivables	(Considered	good)    43,486,713 43,258,093	

   61,733,610 60,604,420 
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16 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

i)	Cash	and	cash	equivalents

				Cash	on	hand         297,241 576,865 

				Cheques	on	hand         131,000 –   

				Balance	with	banks	in	current	accounts      7,225,153 13,116,253 

				Balance	with	banks	in	Unpaid	dividend	accounts	      3,722,100 4,530,675 

ii)	Other	Bank	balances

				Bank	deposits	with	original	maturity	of	more	than	3	months	but	less	than	12	months	*    31,154,384 24,337,483 

				Bank	deposits	with	original	maturity	of	more	than	12	months	*         901,689 –   

(*Bank	deposits	includes	`	9,188,685	(Previous	year	-	`	8,606,356)	fixed	deposits	
lodged	with	Gujrat,	Andhra	Pradesh	and	Haryana	government	projects)

   43,431,567 42,561,276 

17 SHORT-TERM LOANS AND ADVANCES

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Unsecured	,	considered	good

Advances	recoverable	in	cash	or	in	kind	or	for	value	to	be	received      5,005,966 11,677,459	

Balances	with	excise	authorities      1,864,209 323,323 

Security	deposits         736,674 2,685,800 

     7,606,849 14,686,582 

18 OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

Particulars  As at 
31 March 2014 

(`) 

 As at 
31 March 2013 

(`) 

Interest	accrued	on	fixed	deposits	and	bonds         539,145 825,768 

        539,145 825,768 
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19 REVENUE  FROM OPERATIONS

Particulars Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Training	fees	
						-	Course	fees	             86,236,565 														93,531,810	
      - Examination and other fees             72,853,612  81,376,282 
Franchisee	registration	fees	             15,229,999 														17,964,655	
Income	from	franchisee	operations              82,410,819 														99,584,205	
Sale	of	courseware	and	other	materials	
						-	Courseware             26,279,718    31,880,558 
						-	Calibre	software                  300,000                        –   
						-	Information	and	other	reference	materials               1,539,937 																1,044,914	
Other	Operating	income               3,606,230                 4,615,837 

          288,456,880 												329,998,261	

20 OTHER INCOME

Particulars Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Dividend	income	on	long	term	investments	(non-trade):
  - Shares                           –   301,071 
  - Mutual funds                  324,814 																1,202,692	

Profit	on	sale/redemption	of	long	term	investments	(non-trade)	-	net                  295,013 8,301,244 
Interest	income	
						-On	fixed	deposits,bonds	and	debentures               7,478,565 3,698,432	
      -Others                           –                         1,740 
Insurance	surrender	value             14,968,344 														15,298,956	
Miscellaneous	income	#               2,164,054                    613,363 

            25,230,790 29,417,498	

	 #	 Miscellaneous	 income	 includes	 ` 1,771,376	 (Previous	 year	 `	 613,363)	 being	 unspent	 liabilities,	
provisions	no	longer	required	and	unclaimed	balances	in	respect	of	earlier	years	written	back.
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21 PURCHASES OF COURSEWARE AND OTHER MATERIALS

Particulars Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Purchases	of	courseware	and	other	materials*
						-	Courseware             12,684,296 22,748,766 
						-	Calibre	software                  210,000 –   
						-	Information	and	other	reference	materials               1,539,937 1,565,006 

            14,434,233 24,313,772 

*Includes	materials	used	for	own	consumption

22 CHANGES IN INVENTORIES OF COURSEWARE AND OTHER MATERIALS

Particulars Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Closing	stock	of	courseware	and	other	materials
						-	Courseware 3,398,956 4,540,730 
						-	Heathkit	software 811,220 811,220 
						-	Calibre	software –   36,400 
						-	Information	and	other	reference	materials 239,772 441,270 
Total               4,449,948 5,829,620	

Less:	Opening	stock	of	courseware	and	other	materials
						-	Courseware 4,540,730 4,689,207	
						-	Heathkit	software 811,220 1,411,220 
						-	Calibre	software 36,400 36,400 
						-	Information	and	other	reference	materials 441,270 78,939	
Total               5,829,620 6,215,766 

              1,379,672 386,146 

23 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE

Particulars Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Salaries	and	allowances	             88,000,407 103,415,824 
Contribution	to	provident	fund	and	other	funds                4,135,921 4,729,588	
Staff	welfare	expenses               1,525,977 1,696,188	

            93,662,305 109,841,600	
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24 FINANCE COSTS

Particulars  Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

 Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Interest	expenses                           –                      471,344 
Interest others                    94,840                    517,034 

                   94,840 																		988,378	

25 OTHER EXPENSES

Particulars  Current Year 
2013-14

(`) 

 Previous Year 
2012-13

(`) 

Training	expenses            16,090,953 25,134,595	
Advertisement	and	publicity	            18,344,775 23,686,189	
Business	and	sales	promotion            12,587,363 14,220,569	
Legal	and	professional	fees            19,885,862 19,923,490	
Travelling	expenses            16,913,120 18,075,596	
Repairs	and	maintenance
				 -	Building	              3,934,185 2,988,031	
    - Others               5,610,844 6,233,135 
Rent            19,246,628 19,515,442	
Rates and taxes                  889,161 1,051,827 
Electricity	charges              6,048,118 6,478,143 
Printing	and	stationery              1,077,034 1,147,969	
Freight	and	transport	expenses              1,326,309 1,963,291	
Security	and	service	charges              2,881,616 2,770,538 
Telephone	expenses	              3,417,827 4,344,280 
Insurance              3,818,933 4,230,102 
Bank	charges                    72,638 152,324 
Directors'	sitting	fees	                  360,000 131,000 
Auditors'	remuneration:
As auditor:
    - Audit fee                  465,000 465,000 
    - Tax audit fee                  150,000 150,000 
				 -	Limited	review                  105,000 105,000 
In	other	capacity
    - Taxation matters                  273,000 60,000 
				 -	Other	services	(Certification)                    66,500 51,500 
Bad	debts	and	advances	written	off              5,332,441 6,542,894	
Provision	for	doubtful	debts              5,163,813 578,856 
Loss on sale of assets                  343,141 –   
Fixed assets written off                  944,611 20,941	
Miscellaneous	expenses              4,952,155 5,808,097	

         150,301,027 165,828,809	
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26. Contingent liabilities not provided for in respect of:

a.	 Disputed	 service	 tax	 demand	 (net	 of	 provision	 of	 `	 16,758,179,	 previous	 year	 `	 16,758,179)	
aggregating	 to	`	Nil	 (As	 at	March	31,	 2013	`	Nil)	 against	which	 the	Company	has	 preferred	 an	
appeal.	The	Company	has	deposited	upto	March	31,	2014	`	12,730,783	(Upto	March	31,	2013	` 
12,730,783)	under	protest.

b.	 Disputed	 Income	Tax	 demand	 aggregating	 to	`	 4,181,536	 (As	 at	March	 31,	 2013	`	 Nil)	 against	
which	the	Company	has	preferred	an	Appeal	/	for	rectification	of	mistakes	under	Section	154	of	the	
Income	Tax	Act,	1961.	The	Company	has	adjusted	refund	upto	March	31,	2014	` 2,006,116 (As at 
March	31,	2013	`	Nil)	Based	on	the	interpretation	of	the	provisions	of	the	Income	Tax	Act,	1961,	the	
management	is	of	the	opinion	that	the	demand	is	likely	to	be	either	deleted	or	substantially	reduced	
and	accordingly	no	provision	has	been	made.

c.	 Disputed	TDS	demand	aggregating	 to	`	145,020	(As	at	March	31,	2013	`	Nil)	against	which	 the	
Company	has	preferred	for	filling	a	revised	return.	Based	on	the	interpretation	of	the	provisions	of	
the	Income	Tax	Act,	1961,	the	management	is	of	the	opinion	that	the	demand	is	likely	to	be	either	
deleted	or	substantially	reduced	and	accordingly	no	provision	has	been	made.

27. Commitments
a)	 Estimated	amount	of	contracts	remaining	to	be	executed	on	capital	account	not	provided	for	(net	of	

advances)	`	9,207,578	(Previous	year	`	12,894,139).
b)	 Uncalled	capital	commitment	in	respect	of	investment	in	IDFC	Real	Estate	Yield	fund	` 13,500,000 

(Previous	year	` Nil)
28.	 a.	 In	 the	opinion	of	management,	current	assets,	 loans	and	advances	have	a	value	on	realization	 in	

the	ordinary	course	of	business	at	least	equal	to	the	amount	at	which	they	are	stated	in	the	balance	
sheet.	The	provision	for	depreciation	and	all	known	liabilities	is	adequate	and	not	in	excess	of	the	
amount	reasonably	stated.

b.	 Balances	of	certain	trade	receivables,	trade	payables	and	advances	given	are	subject	to	confirmation	/	
reconciliation,	if	any.	The	management	does	not	expect	any	material	difference	affecting	the	financial	
statements	on	such	reconciliation	/	adjustments.

29. Disclosure under (AS) -15 (Revised 2005):
	 The	 Company	 has	 provided	 leave	 encashment	 and	 gratuity	 based	 on	 actuarial	 valuation	 done	 as	 per	

Projected	Unit	Credit	Method.
i)	 Retirement	 benefits	 in	 the	 form	 of	 Provident	 Fund	 are	 a	 defined	 contribution	 scheme	 and	 the	

contributions	are	charged	to	the	Statement	of	Profit	and	Loss	of	the	year	when	the	contributions	to	
the	respective	funds	are	due.	There	are	no	other	obligations	other	than	the	contribution	payable	to	
the	respective	trusts.

ii)	 Gratuity	and	 leave	encashment	 liability	are	defined	benefit	obligation	and	are	provided	 for	on	 the	
basis	of	an	actuarial	valuation	made	at	the	end	of	each	financial	year.

The	Company	has	classified	the	various	benefits	provided	to	employees	as	under:
I. Defined contribution plans:

Contributions	to	defined	contribution	plans	recognized	as	expense	for	the	year	are	as	under:

Particulars Current 
Year
(`)

Previous 
Year
(`)

Contribution	to	provident	fund 3,841,355 4,348,149
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II. Defined benefit plan:
	 The	 Company	 makes	 annual	 contributions	 to	 the	 Employees’	 Group	 Gratuity	 of	 the	 Life	 Insurance	

Corporation	(LIC),	a	funded	defined	benefit	plan	for	qualifying	employees.	Gratuity	is	payable	to	all	eligible	
employees	on	superannuation,	death	or	on	separation/termination	in	terms	of	the	provisions	of	the	Payment	
of	Gratuity	Act	or	as	per	the	Company’s	policy	whichever	is	beneficial	to	the	employees.

	 The	 following	 table	 sets	 out	 the	 amounts	 recognized	 in	 the	 Company’s	 financial	 statements	 as	 at	 
31	March	2014.

31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Particulars Gratuity

(funded)
`

Leave 
encashment
(unfunded)

`

Gratuity
(funded)

`

Leave 
encashment
(unfunded)

`
a) Change in present value of obligation

Present	 value	 of	 obligation	 as	 at	 1	 April	
2013
Interest	cost
Service	cost
Benefits	paid
Actuarial	(gain)/loss	on	obligation
Present	value	of	obligation	as	at	31	March	
2014

29,220,740
2,337,659
1,230,148
(968,970)

(1,278,470)
30,541,107

1,666,533
133,323
554,130

(946,888)
392,005

1,799,103

27,392,914
2,191,433
1,060,622
(939,500)
(484,729)

29,220,740

1,827,116
146,169
621,830

(2,569,097)
1,640,515
1,666,533

b) Change in fair value plan assets
Fair	value	of	plan	assets	as	at	1	April	2013
Expected	return	on	plan	assets	(%)
Contribution	paid
Benefits	paid
Actuarial	gain/(loss)	on	plan	assets
Fair	 value	 of	 plan	 assets	 as	 at	 31	 March	
2014

22,369,581
1,789,566

---
(968,970)
(307,135)

22,883,042

---
---
---
---
---
---

21,377,670
1,710,214

38
(939,500)
221,159

22,369,581

---
---
---
---
---
---

c) Amount recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present	value	of	obligation,	as	at	31	March	
2014
Fair	 value	 of	 plan	 assets	 as	 at	 31	 March	
2014
Liabilities	provided	in	the	Balance	Sheet	and	
Disclosed	 under	 Provisions	 (Refer	 Note	 6	
and	9	of	the	financial	statements).

30,541,107

22,883,042

7,658,065

1,799,103

---

1,799,103

29,220,740

22,369,581

6,851,159

1,666,533

---

1,666,533

d) Net gratuity and leave encashment cost for 
the year ended 31 March 2014
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31 March 2014 31 March 2013
Particulars Gratuity

(funded)
`

Leave 
encashment
(unfunded)

`

Gratuity
(funded)

`

Leave 
encashment
(unfunded)

`
Current	service	cost
Interest	cost
Expected	return	on	plan	assets
Net	Actuarial	(gain)/loss	to	be	recognized
Net	gratuity	and	leave	encashment	cost

1,230,148
2,337,659

(1,789,566)
(971,335)
806,906

554,130
133,323

---
392,005

1,079,458

1,060,622
2,191,433

(1,710,214)
(705,888)
(835,953)

621,830
146,169

---
1,640,515
2,408,514

e) Assumptions used in accounting for the 
gratuity plan
Discount	rate
Salary	escalation	rate
Expected	rate	of	return	on	plan	assets

9%
5%
8%

9%
5%
--

8%
5%
8%

8%
5%
--

	 The	 estimates	 of	 future	 salary	 increases,	 considered	 in	 actuarial	 valuation,	 take	 into	 account	 inflation,	
seniority,	promotion	and	other	relevant	factors,	such	as	supply	and	demand	in	the	employment	market.

	 The	 expected	 return	 on	 plan	 assets	 is	 determined	 considering	 several	 applicable	 factors	 mainly	 the	
composition	of	the	plan	assets	held,	assessed	risks	of	asset	management,	historical	results	of	the	return	
on	plan	assets.

30. Segment reporting:
	 The	Company	operates	in	a	single	primary	business	segment	i.e.	“IT	Training	in	Hardware	and	Networking”.	

Hence,	 there	 are	 no	 reportable	 segments	 as	 per	 Accounting	 Standard	 (AS)	 -	 17	 “Segment	Reporting”	
notified	by	Companies	(Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	2006.	The	Company	does	not	have	any	reportable	
geographical	segment.

31. Related party disclosures:
I) Related party relationship:

a) Wholly	Owned	Subsidiary	Company Jetking	Skill	Development	Pvt.	Ltd.

b) Key	management	personnel a)		Mr.	Suresh	G.	Bharwani
b)		Mr.	Nandu	G.	Bharwani

c) Relatives	of	key	management	
personnel

Mr.	Jitu	G.	Bharwani	–	Brother	of	Suresh	Bharwani	a) 
and	Nandu	Bharwani
Harsh	Bharwani	–	Son	of	Suresh	G.	Bharwanib) 
Avinash	Bharwani	–	Son	of	Suresh	G.	Bharwanic)	
Siddarth	Bharwani	–	Son	of	Suresh	G.	Bharwanid) 
Dipti	Bharwani	–	Wife	of	Nandu	G.	Bharwanie) 
Urvashi	Bharwani–Daughter	of	Nandu	G.	Bharwanif) 
Ritika	Bharwani	-	Daughter	of	Nandu	G.	Bharwanig)	

d) Enterprises	on	which	key	
management	personnel	or	their	
relatives	has	significant	influence

Jetking	Smartrain	Academy	Pvt.	Ltd.
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Notes:
1.	 The	related	party	relationships	have	been	determined	on	the	basis	of	the	requirements	of	the	Accounting	

Standard	 (AS)	 –	 18	 “Related	Party	Disclosures”	 notified	 by	Companies	 (Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	
2006	and	the	same	have	been	relied	upon	by	the	Auditors.

2.	 The	relationships	as	mentioned	above	pertain	to	those	related	parties	with	whom	transactions	have	taken	
place	during	the	year,	except	where	control	exists.

II) Related party transactions:

Sr.
No.

Particulars Current 
Year

`

Previous 
Year

`
A Wholly owned subsidiary Company

Investment in shares of company
Jetking	Skill	Development	Private	Limited 100,000 Nil

B Key management personnel
1 Director’s remuneration

Suresh	G.	Bharwani 8,148,767 10,388,881
Nandu	G.	Bharwani 11,104,767 11,033,183

2 Rent
Suresh	Bharwani 600,000 720,000

C Relatives of key management personnel
1 Rent

Jitu	G.	Bharwani 1,140,000 1,248,000
Avinash	S.	Bharwani 1,074,480 1,074,480
Harsh	S.	Bharwani 1,074,480 1,074,480
Dipti	Bharwani 837,312 837,312
Ritika	Bharwani 837,312 837,312
Urvashi	Bharwani 837,312 837,312

2 Salary
Harsh	Bharwani 1,992,963 1,992,963
Avinash	S.	Bharwani 1,992,963 1,992,963
Urvashi	Bharwani 1,992,963 1,992,963
Siddarth	Bharwani 445,200 445,200

3 Deposit receivable
Avinash	S.	Bharwani 895,400 895,400
Harsh	S.	Bharwani 895,400 895,400
Dipti	Bharwani 697,767 697,767
Ritika	Bharwani 697,766 697,766
Urvashi	Bharwani 697,767 697,767

C Enterprises on which key management personnel or their relatives 
have significant influence -
Jetking Smartrain Academy Pvt. Ltd.
Rent -- 150,000
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Note: As	the	future	liability	for	gratuity	is	provided	on	an	actuarial	basis	for	the	Company	as	a	whole,	the	amount	

pertaining	 to	 the	key	management	personnel	and	 their	 relatives	 is	not	ascertainable	and,	 therefore,	not	
included	above.

32.	 In	the	view	of	inadequacy	of	profits	during	the	year,	remuneration	paid/payable	to	directors,	amounting	to	
`	19,253,534	is	in	accordance	with	the	approval	received	from	the	Central	Government.

33. Leases:
a.	 The	 Company	 has	 taken	 various	 office	 premises	 under	 operating	 lease	 that	 are	 renewable	 on	 a	

periodic	basis	at	the	option	of	both	the	lessor	and	lessee.
b.	 The	future	minimum	lease	payments	as	per	the	operating	lease	under	non-cancellable	lease	terms	

are as follows:

Particulars As at
31/03/2014

`

As at
31/03/2013

`
Not	later	than	one	year 8,911,564 8,811,793
Later	than	one	year	and	not	later	than	five	years 10,123,977 19,563,883
Later	than	five	years -- --

	 The	amount	of	minimum	lease	payments	with	respect	to	the	above	lease	recognized	in	the	Statement	of	
profit	and	loss	for	the	year	is	`	19,246,628	(previous	year	`	19,515,442).

	 Above	disclosure	is	for	leases	entered	after	1	April	2001,	as	per	Accounting	Standard	(AS)	-	19	‘Leases’	
notified	by	Companies	(Accounting	Standards)	Rules,	2006.

34. Earnings per share:

Particulars Current
Year

Previous
Year

Basic and diluted
Net	profit	after	tax	as	per	statement	of	profit	and	loss	(`) 26,094,433 31,600,354
Weighted	 average	 number	 of	 equity	 shares	 outstanding	 during	 the	 year	
(Nos.) 5,889,000 5,889,000

Basic	and	diluted	earnings	per	share	(`) 4.43 5.37
Nominal	value	of	share	(`) 10 10

35.	 There	 is	no	 impairment	 loss	on	 fixed	 assets	on	 the	basis	of	 review	carried	out	by	 the	management	 in	
accordance	with	Accounting	Standard	(AS)	-	28	“Impairment	of	Assets”	notified	by	Companies	(Accounting	
Standards) Rules, 2006.

36.	 Foreign	 currency	 exposures	 that	 are	 not	 hedged	 by	 derivative	 instruments	 as	 at	 31	March	 2014	 is	 as	
follows:

Particulars Equivalent rupee value of 
foreign currency

Amount
(USD)

Income	received	in	advance 802,683

(1,453,159)

13,355.83

(26,712)

		 Figures	in	bracket	are	for	the	previous	year.
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37.	 Income	and	Expenditure	in	foreign	currency:

a)	 	Income	in	foreign	currency:	(On	accrual	basis)

Particulars Current year Previous year
` `

Income	from	franchisee	operations 1,097,288  540,602
Franchisee	registration	fee 1,244,304  655,504
Sale	of	courseware	and	other	materials 292,864  350,455
Examination and other fees 516,846  1,276,168
Miscellaneous	income 26,446  53,243
Total 3,177,748 2,875,971

b)	 	Expenditure	in	foreign	currency:	(On	accrual	basis)

Particulars Current year Previous year
` `

Training	expenses – 3,173
Tablet	PC	training	programme – 102,294
Travelling	expenses 546,720 211,664
Communication	expenses – 739
Business	and	sales	promotion – 220,588
Freight	and	transport	expenses – 29,085
Miscellaneous	expenses – 17,982
Bank	charges 16,765 6,658
Total 563,485 592,183

As	per	our	report	of	even	date	attached	 	 	 	 	 	 	
FOR SURESH SURANA & ASSOCIATES LLP  For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 
Chartered	Accountants	 	 	 	
      
Ramesh Gupta Suresh G Bharwani		 Chairman	&	Managing	Director
PARTNER Nandu G Bharwani		 Joint	Managing	Director				
Membership	No.	102306	 Deepali Koneri 		 Company	Secretary	 		
    
Place:	Mumbai	 Place:	Mumbai		
Dated:	26th	May	2014	 Dated:	26th	May	2014		
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JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED
Registered	Office:	401,	Bussa	Udyog	Bhavan,	T.	J.	Road,	Near	Sewri	Bus	Terminus,	Sewri	(W),	Mumbai-400015

Tel.: 022-24156528/6486 | Email: investors@jetking.com 
Website: www.jetking.com 

ATTENDANCE SLIP

PLEASE COMPLETE THIS ATTENDANCE SLIP AND HAND IT OVER AT THE ENTRANCE OF THE MEETING PLACE

I	hereby	record	my	attendance	at	the	THIRTIETH	ANNUAL	GENERAL	MEETING	of	JETKING	INFOTRAIN	LIMITED	held	on	Monday,	July	14,	2014	

at	11.30	a.m.	at	Executive	Enclave,	331,	Dr.	Ambedkar	Road,	Pali	Hill,	Bandra	(W),	Mumbai	–	400	050

___________________________________
				Signature	of	the	Proxy/	
Signature	of	the	Member

Name of the Member 

Name	of	the	Proxy	

Folio No.:   No. of Shares: 

JETKING INFOTRAIN LIMITED
Registered	Office	:	401,	Bussa	Udyog	Bhavan,	T.	J.	Road,	Near	Sewri	Bus	Terminus,	Sewri	(W),	Mumbai-400015

Tel.: 022-24156528/6486 | Email: investors@jetking.com 
Website: www.jetking.com

PROXY FORM
I/We 	being	a	Member(s)	of	JETKING	INFOTRAIN	LIMITED,	hereby	

appoint	 Mr./Mrs.	 	 or	 failing	 him/her	

Mr./Mrs.   	as	my/our	Proxy	to	attend	and	vote	for	me/us	and	on	my/our	

behalf,	at	the	Thirtieth	Annual	General	Meeting	of	the	Company,	to	be	held	on	Monday,	July	14,	2014	at	11.30	a.m.	and	at	any	adjournment(s)	

thereof.

Signature	of	Member	across	the	Revenue	Stamp:

Folio No. :

Signed	by	the	said	proxy

1.    2. 

Signed	this	 	day	of	 , 2014

NOTE : This	form,	in	order	to	be	effective,	should	be	duly	stamped,	completed,	sighed	and	deposited	at	the	Registered	Office	of	the	Company	
not	less	than	48	hours	before	the	meeting

Affix	` 1/- 
Revenue	
Stamp
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